
AGENDA FOR REGULAR CMD AND CPOA BOARD MEETINGS 
FRIDAY, JUNE 23, 2017  

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Regular Meeting of the Boards of Directors of Cordillera Property 
Owners Association and Regular Meeting of the Cordillera Metropolitan District, Eagle County, Colorado will 
be held at the Cordillera Cafe, 0360 Carterville Road, Edwards, Eagle County, Colorado on Friday, June 23, 
2017. The meeting will be held for the following agenda and other matters that may come before the Boards. 

 
CORDILLERA METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 
Judith G. McBride, President, Term to May 2018 

Robert Egan, Treasurer, Term to May 2018 
David Davies, Vice President, Term to May 2020 

David Bentley, Secretary, Term to May 2018 
Kitty George, Assistant Treasurer/Assistant Secretary, Term to May 2020 

 
CORDILLERA PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION 

Ed Shriner, President, Term to August 2019 
Larry Brooks, Vice President, Term to August 2019 

Nanette Kuich, Treasurer, Term to August 2017 
Lois Bruce, Secretary, Term to August 2017 

Rick Smith, Assistant Treasurer/Assistant Secretary, Term to August 2018 
 

8:30 – 8:35 OPEN CMD MEETING – Ms. Judith McBride (CMD President)  
1. Call to Order 
2. Declaration of Quorum/Director Qualifications/Disclosure Matters 
3. Approval of Agenda 
4. Approval of Consent Agenda Items 

a. Approval of April 28 Special Meeting Minutes  ....................................................Page 3 
b. Approval of May 16 Special Meeting Minutes  ......................................................Page 7 
c. Approval of May 24 Special Meeting Minutes  ......................................................Page 10 

 
8:35 – 8:40 OPEN CPOA MEETING – Mr. Ed Shriner (CPOA President) 

1. Call to Order  
2. Declaration of Quorum/Director Qualifications/Disclosure Matters 
3. Approval of Agenda 
4. Approval of Consent Agenda Items 

a. Approval of April 28 Special Meeting Minutes  ....................................................Page 15 
b. Approval of May 16 Special Meeting Minutes  ......................................................Page 20 
c. Approval of May 24 Special Meeting Minutes  ......................................................Page 23 

 
8:40 – 9:00 PUBLIC INPUT ON NON AGENDA ITEMS 

1. Eagle Valley Land Trust  
 
9:00 – 9:20 CMD ITEMS – Ms. Judith McBride  

1. Lot Donation- Rachel Oys ..................................................................................................Page 27 
2. Financials- Rachel Oys .......................................................................................................Page 51  
3. Ratification of Rocky Mountain Custom Landscapes Contract- Rachel Oys .....................Page 62 

 
9:20 – 10:00 CPOA ITEMS – Mr. Ed Shriner 

1. Financials- Rachel Oys  ......................................................................................................Page 80 
2. Short Course- Kensington HOA  ........................................................................................Page 88  

 
 

1



10:00 – 1:30 JOINT ITEMS – Ms. Judith McBride and Mr. Ed Shriner 
1. Management Team Report- Rachel Oys  ............................................................................Page 90 
2. Community Center Planning Update- Planning Team: Goulding Development Advisors, Davis

Partnership and Shaw Construction
• Presentation of research conducted to date and conceptual plans
• Community outreach schedule
• Public input following presentation and board discussion

1:30 ADJOURNMENT 

NEXT SPECIAL MEETINGS – Monday, July 10 at 1:00 p.m. and Thursday, August 3 at 1:00 p.m. 
ANNUAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS – Friday, August 18 at 3:00 p.m. 

NEXT REGULAR MEETING – Friday, September 22 at 8:30 a.m. 

2



CORDILLERA METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

FRIDAY, APRIL 28, 2017 
0408 CARTERVILLE ROAD, CORDILLERA, COLORADO 

The Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Cordillera Metropolitan District (CMD) was called 
and held Friday, April 28, 2017 in accordance with the applicable statutes of the State of Colorado. 

ATTENDANCE 
Present: Robert Egan, President 

David Bentley, Vice-President 

Via Telephone: David Davies, Secretary 
Judith McBride, Treasurer 

Absent: Kitty George, Assistant Treasurer & Assistant Secretary 

ALSO PRESENT  
CPOA Board Members: Ed Shriner, Nanette Kuich (via proxy), Lois Bruce (via telephone), Rick Smith 
(via telephone) and Larry Brooks (via telephone). 

OTHERS PRESENT 
Rachel Oys, general manager; Alan Pogue, legal counsel; Scott Proper, finance director; Berniece 
Gutierrez, human resources and administrative services manager; Jaime Walker, communications 
manager; Trevor Broersma, operations director; Tracy Stowell, executive coordinator; Chris Cumming; 
Mike Henritze, Troon; Jack LoBiondo, Troon and Todd Goulding, Goulding Development Advisors. 

CALL TO ORDER 
Director Egan called to order the Special Meeting of the Cordillera Metropolitan District at 11:02 a.m. 

DECLARATION OF QUORUM/DIRECTOR QUALIFICATION 
Director Egan noted for the record a quorum was present for the purpose of doing the business of the 
Cordillera Metropolitan District. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF NOTICE OF MEETING AT LEAST 72 HOURS IN 
ADVANCE OF THE MEETING.  
All board members acknowledged receiving notice of the special meeting at least 72 hours in advance. 
No conflicts of interest were noted. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
April 28, 2017 Special Meeting Agenda 
Fly fishing and Club at Cordillera member access was added to the agenda. Director Bentley moved to 
approve the April 28, 2017, Special Meeting Agenda. Seconded by Director McBride. 

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Board voted unanimously. 

3



Approved the April 28, 2017 Special Meeting Agenda. 
 
APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
March 24, 2017, Regular Meeting Minutes 
March 27, 2017, Special Meeting Minutes 
March 28, 2017 Special Meeting Minutes 
Director Bentley moved to approve the March 24 Regular Meeting Minutes and the March 27 and 28, 
2017, Special Meeting Minutes. Seconded by Director Davies. 
   Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Board voted unanimously.  
Approved the March 24, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes and the March 27 and 28, 2017, Special 
Meeting Minutes. 
 
PUBLIC INPUT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
JOINT CMD AND CPOA AGENDA ITEMS 
Fly Fishing and Club at Cordillera Member Access 
McBride, Shriner and Broersma have been working with Fly Fishing Outfitters on ensuring the integrity 
of the river parcel and also maximizing beats for property owner use. After receiving complaints that 
booking were regularly full last summer, discussions for 2017 resulted in adding beats, modifying the 
resting schedule, allowing reservation to be made a week in advance and terminating Club at Cordillera 
member access. Upon review the contract, the parties include CMD, CPOA, Cordillera Valley Club and 
Timber Springs. The annual rules and regulations have permitted Club at Cordillera member access by 
paying an annual $500 fee.  
 
Communications regarding the decision to terminate access to the Club at Cordillera could have been 
improved for the 2017 season. After board discussion, both boards agreed to continue Club at Cordillera 
member access to fly fishing for a $500 annual fee for 2017 only. Troon and CMD staff will meet with 
Fly Fishing Outfitters to execute 2017 summer operations, including moving fishing passes to CMD’s 
front desk. 
 
Community Center Planning Update 
Oys updated the Boards on the community center planning process.  
 
As a recap, on March 27, 2017 boards toured athletic club facilities in Gypsum, Arrowhead and 
Singletree. Facilities were: 

• Gypsum Recreation Center – a fitness center featuring free weights, cardio, fitness class room, 
spin room, community room, indoor track, gymnastics, basketball and indoor pool with 
waterslide. Gypsum Recreation Center is open to the public. Tour was led by Jeff Shroll, 
Gypsum Town Manager and Scott Ruff, WECMRD Manager. 

• Alpine Club at Arrowhead – a 20,000 square foot clubhouse for members only. Facilities include 
a fitness center and spa, slope side clubhouse with ski valet services and lockers, heated 
swimming pool and hot tub. Nadine Davis, club director, led the tour. 

• Sonnenalp Club at Singletree – a private club featuring golf, health and wellness facility, access 
to ski services and a restaurant.  Shaun Evans, director of health and fitness, led the tour. 

 
A strategic planning session was held March 28. The planning session focused on objectives to enhance 
the vibrancy and vitality of the community. As a result of the session, both boards unanimously decided 

4



to initiate a planning and development process for a centralized community center that would serve as a 
multi-use, focal point at the entrance of our community. We anticipate a robust, fast paced and engaging 
process that builds on the strategic initiatives the boards and communities have developed previously 
and simultaneously anticipates the needs and interest of the current and new homeowners in Cordillera 
for generations to come.  
 
On April 6, 2017 - Joe Helminski, Trevor Broersma and Rachel Oys met with Todd Goulding, Goulding 
Development Advisors to talk about the project, process and immediate next steps. 
 
April 10, 2017 -  a request for qualifications for a consultant to assist CMD/CPOA with land planning 
for a new community center. Scope will include identification of potential sites, feasibility analysis, 
board and community presentations and coordination with Ownership and their consultants. 
Submissions were due in Friday, April 21, 2017.  
 
April 14, 2017 - Joe Helminski, Trevor Broersma and Rachel Oys hosted a site visit for interested firms. 
Davis Partnership and Barker Rinker Seacat participated in the site visit. 
 
April 21, 2017 - three firms submitted proposals: Oz Architecture, Davis Partnership and Barker Rinker 
Seacat. 
 
April 24, 2017 - Joe Helminski, Trevor Broersma, Rachel Oys and Todd Goulding met and reviewed the 
three submissions. All three were invited for an interview. 
 
April 26, 2017 - Joe Helminski, Trevor Broersma, Rachel Oys and Todd Goulding hosted interviews 
with the three firms. Davis Partnership was unanimously selected as the firm to conduct for the master 
planning process and feasibility study. Schematic design will be determined by boards this fall.  
 
Todd Goulding will serve as the owner’s representative/project manager. Davis Partnership will serve as 
the architect firm for the master planning and schematic design. A general contractor will be selected via 
Request for Proposal in May. The general contractor will assist with pricing, scheduling and feasibility.  
 
Feasibility Study Cost Estimates  
May 1 – September 30, 2017 
$40,000  Goulding Development Advisors  
$113,000 Davis Partnership Master Planning/Conceptual 
$62,000 Davis Partnership Schematic Design (potential costs if determined by boards this fall) 
$25,000 General Contractor  
$25,000 Geotechnical Surveys  
$15,000  Reimbursables 
$280,000 Total  
 
Director Bentley moved to approve $280,000, split with CPOA. Seconded by Director McBride. 
   Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Board voted unanimously.  
Approved $280,000, split with CPOA. 
 
STAFF UPDATES 

• Six candidates were selected to interview for the Equestrian Center Manager position. Second 

5



interviews will take place the week of May 8 with an equine test and a tour of the equestrian 
center facilities. 

• A chain has been installed at the parking lot entrance of the Grouse on the Green to deter anyone
from parking in the lot.

• The short course opens on May 19 as a walking course only. Play starts each day at 9 a.m. and
standard golf etiquette applies. The course will be closed each Wednesday for maintenance.
Parking is along the south side of Kensington Court. Signs will be posted.

• Staff will be implementing traffic calming elements that McDowell Engineering had
recommended July 2016

o Trevor Broersma, operations director, will check on the Cordillera Way speed bumps.
• Divide entrance stumps will be removed and there is no plan to replace the trees. Insect

mitigation will take place this summer.

ADJOURNMENT 
Director Bentley moved to adjourn the Special Meeting of the Cordillera Metropolitan District. 
Seconded by Director McBride. 

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Board voted unanimously to 
Adjourn the Special Meeting of the Cordillera Metropolitan District at 12:01 p.m. on Friday, 
April 28, 2017. 

Respectfully submitted, 

___________________________ 
Tracy Stowell 

Executive Coordinator 

6



CORDILLERA METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2017 
0408 CARTERVILLE ROAD, CORDILLERA, COLORADO 

The Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Cordillera Metropolitan District (CMD) was called 
and held Tuesday, May 16, 2017 in accordance with the applicable statutes of the State of Colorado. 

ATTENDANCE 
Present: Judy McBride, President 

David Bentley, Secretary 
Robert Egan, Treasurer 

Absent: David Davies, Vice President 
Kitty George, Assistant Treasurer & Assistant Secretary 

ALSO PRESENT  
CPOA Board Members: Ed Shriner, Lois Bruce (via telephone), Rick Smith (via telephone) and Larry 
Brooks. 

OTHERS PRESENT 
Rachel Oys, general manager; Alan Pogue, legal counsel; Berniece Gutierrez, human resources and 
administrative services manager; Jaime Walker, communications manager; Trevor Broersma, operations 
director; Tracy Stowell, executive coordinator; Kirk Pliske, public safety director; Joe Helminski, 
recreation director; Todd Goulding, Goulding Development Advisors; Joe Lear, Davis Partnerships 
Lynn Moore, Davis Partnership; Scott Nevin, Davis Partnership; Jay Kocks, Davis Partnership; and 
Misty Bell, Davis Partnership.  

CALL TO ORDER 
Director McBride called to order the Special Meeting of the Cordillera Metropolitan District at 2:03 
p.m.

DECLARATION OF QUORUM/DIRECTOR QUALIFICATION 
Director McBride noted for the record a quorum was present for the purpose of doing the business of the 
Cordillera Metropolitan District. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF NOTICE OF MEETING AT LEAST 72 HOURS IN 
ADVANCE OF THE MEETING.  
All board members acknowledged receiving notice of the regular meeting at least 72 hours in advance. 
No conflicts of interest were noted. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
May 16, 2017 Special Meeting Agenda 
Director Egan moved to approve the May 16, 2017, Special Meeting Agenda. Seconded by Director 
Bentley. 

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Board voted unanimously. 
Approved the May 16, 2017 Special Meeting Agenda. 

7



PUBLIC INPUT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
There were 25 property owners and public in attendance at the May 16, 2017 joint special board 
meeting. Attendees introduced themselves and stated why they attended the meeting. In attendance 
were: Cindy Moran, Steve Gamble, Dick Marks, John Moorman, Kathie and Bill Stephenson, Anne 
Roberts, Grace Gamble, Jana Wisenbaker, Kent Barker, Charles Baker, John O’Brien, John Warren, 
Jane Roberts, Barry Gassman, Charlene Koegel, Jeanne Quagliano, Judy Yordi, Angela and Hugh 
Overy, Dee and Jay Tobin, Henry Reed, John and Carolyn Moorman, Elizabeth Reed, Rand Garbacz 
and Micky Poage.  

JOINT CMD AND CPOA AGENDA ITEMS 
Community Center Planning Process 
Rachel Oys, general manager, led the planning session with a brief timeline of events of the last six 
weeks.  

• Monday, March 27, CMD and CPOA Boards toured three local athletic clubs with different
community amenities. Those facilities included the Gypsum Recreation Center, the Alpine Club
in Arrowhead and the Sonnenalp Club in Singletree.

• Tuesday, March 28, a strategic planning session was held after the half-day tour on March 27.
The planning session focused on objectives to enhance the vibrancy and vitality of the
community. As a result of the session, both boards unanimously decided to initiate a planning
and development process for a centralized community center that would serve as a multi-use,
focal point at the entrance of the community. This entailed hiring Todd Goulding, Goulding
Development Advisors (GDA), to serve as the owner’s representative and project manager.

• April 10, a request for qualifications was posted for a consultant to assist CMD and CPOA with
land planning and conceptual design for a new community center.

• April 26, three firms were chosen to interview with staff and Goulding. Davis Partnership was
unanimously selected as the firm to engage for the master planning process and schematic
design.

Oys introduced Goulding and Davis Partnership. 
• Goulding was selected as the owner representative in 2016 for the Athletic Center at Cordillera

renovation, and has worked with numerous other special districts and municipalities such as
Beaver Creek Metropolitan District, Eagle River Fire Protection District, Eagle River Water and
Sanitation District and Berry Creek Metropolitan District.  Goulding provides turnkey project
management services for owners and developers.

• Davis Partnership will serve as the architect firm and will conduct land planning and schematic
design for a centralized, premier Cordillera community center. Davis is one of Colorado's largest
and most broadly capable design firms, offering services in architecture, landscape architecture,
master planning, interior design, signage design and architectural research. Davis is committed to
a collaborative multidisciplinary process that integrates the building, its site, interiors and
signage into a single, coordinated and expressive solution. Davis specializes in a wide variety of
project types, including community centers, professional offices, health care facilities as well as
higher education, multifamily residential, hospitality, mixed-use, sports and recreation, research
and civic projects.

Joe Lear, co-leader of design, introduced the Davis team and presented a plan that will be implemented 
in the coming months. The presentation included: 

• Similar Project Review –  Davis Partnership presented similar projects to the boards. The
presentation featured both private and public facilities and was meant to serve as a guide as to
what type of facilities, amenities and interior designs of similar communities .

8



• Selection of facilities to visit – There was discussion about Boards and key staff touring some of
the similar facilities that were presented. The boards concurred that additional tours were not
needed at this time.

• Program Elements – Davis Partnership listed what program elements Cordillera has verses those
of other communities and facilities. Meeting attendees gave feedback of what they envisioned
the community would like in a new facility.

• General Contractor and RFP Selection – Selection for a general contractor will begin the end of
May through a RFP process. The general contractor will be able to provide accurate cost
estimates.

• Overall Schedule Review – A draft schedule was included in the presentation. The schedule
includes special board meetings, weekly consultant and staff meetings, community outreach
events and other key dates.

• Next Steps – Davis Partnerships will start analyzing all CMD and CPOA owned parcels and
looking at land use regulations within the PUD. Davis will present these findings at the next
CMD and CPOA special board meeting on Wednesday, May 24, 2017.

ADJOURNMENT 
Director Egan moved to adjourn the Special Meeting of the Cordillera Metropolitan District. Seconded 
by Director Bentley. 

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Board voted unanimously to 
Adjourn the Special Meeting of the Cordillera Metropolitan District at 5:16 p.m. on Tuesday, May 16, 
2017. 

Respectfully submitted, 

___________________________ 
Tracy Stowell 

Executive Coordinator 

9



CORDILLERA METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 24, 2017 
0408 CARTERVILLE ROAD, CORDILLERA, COLORADO 

The Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Cordillera Metropolitan District (CMD) was called 
and held Wednesday, May 24, 2017 in accordance with the applicable statutes of the State of Colorado. 

ATTENDANCE 
Present: Judith McBride, President 

David Bentley, Secretary 
Robert Egan, Treasurer 
David Davies, Vice President 
Kitty George, Assistant Treasurer & Assistant Secretary 

ALSO PRESENT  
CPOA Board Members: Lois Bruce, Rick Smith (via telephone) and Larry Brooks. 

OTHERS PRESENT 
Alan Pogue, legal counsel (via telephone); Berniece Gutierrez, human resources and administrative 
services manager; Jaime Walker, communications manager; Trevor Broersma, operations director; 
Tracy Stowell, executive coordinator; Kirk Pliske, public safety director; Joe Helminski, recreation 
director; Todd Goulding, Goulding Development Advisors; Joe Lear, Davis Partnership; Lynn Moore, 
Davis Partnership; and Scott Nevin, Davis Partnership. 

CALL TO ORDER 
Director McBride called to order the Special Meeting of the Cordillera Metropolitan District at 3:00 
p.m.

DECLARATION OF QUORUM/DIRECTOR QUALIFICATION 
Director McBride noted for the record a quorum was present for the purpose of doing the business of the 
Cordillera Metropolitan District. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF NOTICE OF MEETING AT LEAST 72 HOURS IN 
ADVANCE OF THE MEETING.  
All board members acknowledged receiving notice of the regular meeting at least 72 hours in advance. 
No conflicts of interest were noted. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
May 24, 2017 Special Meeting Agenda  
Director McBride added Traffic Calming Update to the May 24, 2017 Agenda. 
Director Egan moved to approve the May 24, 2017, Special Meeting Agenda with the addition of the 
Traffic Calming Update. Seconded by Director George. 

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Board voted unanimously. 
Approved the May 24, 2017 Special Meeting Agenda with the addition of 

the Traffic Calming Update. 

10



 
 
 

PUBLIC INPUT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
There were 12 members of the public in attendance at the May 24, 2017 joint special board meeting. In 
attendance were: Buzz Larson, Cindy Moran, Becka Green, Jane Roberts, John Warren, Nancy Boyce, 
Jim Regele, David Staat, Charlene Koegel, Joyce Krasnow, and Judy and Dick Marks. Directors asked 
for public input on any non-agenda items stating that all comments related to the community center 
should be saved for after the community center planning presentation. There was no public comment on 
non-agenda items. 
 
JOINT CMD AND CPOA AGENDA ITEMS 
Community Center Planning Process 
Todd Goulding, Goulding Development Advisors and Davis Partnerships presented an agenda for the 
presentation. Presentation included: 

• Process Overview –  
o May 27, CMD and CPOA Boards toured three local athletic clubs with different 

community amenities. Those facilities included the Gypsum Recreation Center, the 
Alpine Club in Arrowhead and the Sonnenalp Club in Singletree. 

o Tuesday, May 28 CMD and CPOA Boards participated in a strategic planning session 
focused on objectives to enhance the vibrancy and vitality of the community. As a result 
of the session, both boards unanimously decided to initiate a planning and development 
process for a centralized community center that would serve as a multi-use, focal point at 
the entrance of the community. This entailed hiring Todd Goulding, Goulding 
Development Advisors (GDA), to serve as the owner’s representative and project 
manager. 

o April 10, 2017 a request for qualifications was posted for a consultant to assist CMD and 
CPOA with land planning and conceptual design. Ultimately, Davis Partnerships was 
selected as the consultant. There is a request for proposal due the week of May 31 to hire 
a general contractor. The general contractor is not to be hired to preform construction but 
to work with the team to give expertise in the actual costs associated with building a new 
structure.  

• Program Elements – Davis Partnerships provided a list of program elements that Cordillera 
currently has and potentially new elements. The brainstorm list included discussion on the 
following: 

o Administration – There was discussion on the administration aspect of the project as to 
whether to have the administration offices relocated to the new facility or to leave it in 
it’s current location. 

o Business Center-to provide fax machines, copiers and computers. Board members agreed 
to take the business center off the list. Most felt that property owners already have these 
amenities in their homes. 

o Café – Discussion around whether a café would be as it is now with self-serve coffee or 
to bring in a vendor to open a café. The discussion turned to whether food service is 
needed or if it can sustain itself. Majority believed it is not sustainable but agreed that a 
self-serve coffee bar is sufficient. 

o Catering/Chefs 
o Community Trails (bike, hike, Nordic skiing and snowshoeing) 
o Concert Venues – for Cordillera community events to replace the use of Bearcat as the 

11



concert venue. Attendees expressed concern over Red Draw residents opposing the 
concert venue aspect of this project with potential noise pollution and the history of 
property owners opposing the Red Draw Ranch wedding and events center. 

o Culinary Training
o Day Care - This element was up for two different discussions. One relating to potential

child care for athletic center patrons and the other relating to Cordy Camp. Amongst
attendees, there was opposition to providing child care to the athletic center but support
for the existing programming of Cordy Camp.

o Athletic Center – with all existing programming with an additional in-door running track,
larger space for additional class types and climbing wall.  There was opposition around
the in-door running track and the climbing wall.

o Equestrian Center
o Event /Conference Center
o Fishing
o Ice Rink
o Multiple Dining Concepts – See Café
o Offsite Ski property
o Pet Amenities
o Pools
o Post Office
o Tennis (pickle ball)
o Winter Activities (skiing, snowboarding, sledding)
o Transportation – To connect the Cordillera community with Vail and Beaver Creek

The list of amenities is comprehensive and may be reduced or cut from the design process. Consultants 
want the boards to know what type of amenities can be incorporated into a new facility from the 
beginning or planned for in the future. 

• Site Evaluation – Davis presented five parcels owned by CMD and CPOA. These parcels
include:

o Admin/Post Office Parcel – Three plus acres owned by CMD. PUD allows for recreation
and community center.

o Metro District Parcels – Over 18 acres now containing the community operations
building, dog park and trailer parking. This parcel has flat areas with steep grades going
up the hill behind the existing facilities. PUD allows for recreation and community
center.

o Summit Parcel – Over nine acres where the existing athletic center resides owned by
CMD. PUD use allows for recreation and community center. Parcel is in the summit and
would not reflect the objective of having a focal point at the entrance of the community.

o Trailhead Parcels - Two parcels equaling almost nine and a half acres where the
Trailhead and pools reside, owned by CPOA. Tract 1 sits on both sides of Fenno Drive.
PUD allows for recreation and community center. Parcels are in the Ranch and would not
reflect the objective of having a focal point at the entrance of the community.

o Equestrian Parcels – Consists of two parcels with over 217 acres owned by CPOA. This
parcel is not part of the PUD and would require special review from Eagle County. The
parcel is the most desirable for the community center.

• Architectural Character – Davis presented a slide show of different architectural styles of
buildings and of different pools designs for pleasure and fitness. The slide show provided

12



architectural character concepts for the boards and community as what the best fit would be for 
Cordillera. Discussion from the slide show included massing and light pollution. 

• Schedule – A draft schedule was presented. Events included on the schedule include: 
o June 27: New Homeowner Reception and Summer Wine Tasting 
o June 30: Sounds of Summer Concert Series with Hardscabble 
o July 3: Community Day/Community Center Planning Open House 
o July 4: Vail Gondola Club Fourth of July Barbeque 
o July 6: Community Center Planning Open House at the Cafe 
o July 7 Community Center Planning Open House at the Cafe 
o July 10: Board meeting 
o August 3: Board Meeting 
o August 16: Sounds of Summer Concert Series with the Hazel Miller Band 
o August 18: Board Meeting/Annual Meeting/CPOA Election 
o September 23: Horsin’ Around Day * 
o September 22: Board Meeting 
o October 4: Board Meeting 

*Date change 
  

Visit CordilleraLiving.com/CommunityCenter to learn more.  
 
 

PUBLIC INPUT REGARDING COMMUNITY CENTER 
Director Brooks and Director McBride opened up public input for comments on the community center. 
Nancy Boyce, John Warren, Buzz Larson, Charlene Koegel and Cindy Moran all had public input. 
 
CMD AGENDA ITEMS 
Traffic Calming Update 
In 2016 McDowell Engineering was contracted to complete a traffic calming study in Cordillera. Fenno 
Drive and Cordillera Way were two areas identified as having relatively high frequency of speeding 
vehicles. Kari Schroeder, McDowell Engineering, presented her assessment and recommendations to the 
boards on July 15, 2016.  Recommendations that will be implemented this summer include: 

• A temporary roundabout will be installed at Fenno Drive and Club Cottage Drive.  It will be 4 
inches of asphalt mounded on top of the current roadway. The Club at Cordillera has reviewed 
the plans and delivery trucks will be able to drive over the mounds as needed. This will be 
completed at the same time as the Fenno Drive overlay.  

• Stripping on Fenno will create a three-foot shoulder, thus narrowing the roadway in most areas 
where legally permitted.  

• Speed bumps were installed on Fenno Drive near Trailhead and Cordillera Way. 
• A summer communications campaign about speeding will take place in the Cordillera 

Connection, website and other methods. 
• Staff is researching a transportable radar sign for traffic speed, work in progress and 

event notifications. Additional details will be forthcoming. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Director McBride moved to adjourn the Special Meeting of the Cordillera Metropolitan District. 
Seconded by Director Egan. 

 
Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Board voted unanimously to 

13



Adjourn the Special Meeting of the Cordillera Metropolitan District at 5:49 p.m. on Wednesday, May 
24, 2017. 

Respectfully submitted, 

___________________________ 
Tracy Stowell 

Executive Coordinator 

14



CORDILLERA PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

FRIDAY, APRIL 28, 2017 
0408 CARTERVILLE ROAD, CORDILLERA, COLORADO 

The Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Cordillera Property Owners Association (CPOA) 
was called and held Friday, April 28, 2017, in accordance with the applicable statutes of the State of 
Colorado. 

ATTENDANCE 
Present: Ed Shriner, President 

Via Telephone: Larry Brooks, Vice President  
Rick Smith, Assistant Secretary 
Lois Bruce, Secretary  

By Proxy: Nanette Kuich, Treasurer 

ALSO PRESENT  
CMD Board Members: Bob Egan, David Bentley, Judith McBride (via telephone), and David Davies 
(via telephone). 

OTHERS PRESENT 
Rachel Oys, general manager; Alan Pogue, legal counsel; Scott Proper, finance director; Berniece 
Gutierrez, human resources and administrative services manager; Jaime Walker, communications 
manager; Trevor Broersma, operations director; Tracy Stowell, executive coordinator; Joe Helminski, 
recreation director; Kirk Pliske, public safety director; Millie Aldrich, DRB coordinator, Gene 
Shanahan, DRB board member, Henry Reed, DRB board member, Judy LaSpada, DRB Board Member 
Susie & Grant Cunningham; Sarah Baker, legal counsel; Greg Murphy; Otto Hichinger; Chris 
Cumming; Eric Jung, DRB alternate; George Longo; Anne Roberts; Hugh & Angela Overy; Milt 
Dodson; Paul Miller, DRB board member; Cass and Barry Gassman; David Staat, DRB board member; 
Carrie Schultz, Dennis Moran, DRB alternate, Mike Henritze, Troon; Jack LoBiondo, Troon and Todd 
Goulding, Goulding Development Advisors. 

CALL TO ORDER 
Director Shriner called to order the Special Meeting of the Cordillera Property Owners Association at 
9 a.m.  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
April 28, 2017 Special Meeting Agenda  
Fly fishing and Club at Cordillera member access was added to the agenda. Director Brooks moved to 
approve the April 28, 2017 Special Meeting Agenda with the addition of agenda item. Seconded by 
Director Bruce. 

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Board unanimously by those present. 
Approved the April 28, 2017 Special Meeting Agenda. 

15



DECLARATION OF QUORUM/DIRECTOR QUALIFICATION 
Director Shriner noted for the record a quorum was present for the purpose of doing the business of the 
Cordillera Property Owners Association. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF NOTICE OF MEETING AT LEAST 72 HOURS IN 
ADVANCEMENT OF THE MEETING.  
All board members acknowledged receiving notice of the special meeting at least 72 hours in advance. 
No conflicts of interest were noted. 

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
March 24, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Director Smith moved to approve the March 24, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes. Seconded by Director 
Bruce.  

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Board unanimously by those present. 
Approved the March 24, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes. 

March 27, 2017 Special Meeting Minutes 
Director Bruce moved to approve the March 27, 2017 Special Meeting Minutes. Seconded by Director 
Smith.  

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Board unanimously by those present. 
Approved the March 27, 2017 Special Meeting Minutes. 

March 28, 2017 Special Meeting Minutes 
Director Smith moved to approve the March 28, 2017 Special Meeting Minutes. Seconded by Director 
Bruce.  

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Board unanimously by those present. 
Approved the March 28, 2017 Special Meeting Minutes. 

CPOA DRB APPEAL HEARING 
Grant and Susie Cunningham, owners of 166 Peregrine Drive, brought an appeal of the Design Review 
Board’s decision to deny sketch plan for the proposed residence on the Cunningham property.  The 
sketch plan was denied by the DRB on March 14, 2017, and the Cunningham’s timely filed a notice of 
intent to appeal that decision to the CPOA Board.  The Cunninghams were represented at the hearing by 
legal counsel Sarah Baker. 

The DRB made an initial presentation outlining the history of the review process and the basis for its 
denial of the Cunningham’s sketch plan. 

The Cunninghams, along with legal counsel Ms. Baker, made a presentation setting forth the basis for 
their appeal of the DRB’s decisions. 

CPOA Board members asked questions of the DRB and the Cunninghams.   The public was given the 
opportunity to comment, but no public comment was given. 

16



The DRB and Cunninghams each provided a closing summary of their respective positions, following 
which, Director Shriner closed the appeal hearing. 
  
Mr. Pogue advised the Board that it was permitted to convene an executive session pursuant to the 
CPOA Bylaws and the Colorado Common Interest Ownership Act, to receive legal advice related to the 
appeal of the DRB denial of the Cunningham sketch plan. 
  
Upon motion by Director Smith, second by Director Bruce, and unanimous approval by the Board of 
Directors, the Board convened an executive session pursuant to Section 6.2 of the CPOA’s Second 
Amended and Restated Bylaws and pursuant to Section 38-33.3-308(4)(b), C.R.S., to receive legal 
advice from legal counsel on matters related to the Cunningham appeal of the DRB’s decision.  The 
executive session convened at 10:41 a.m. 
  
Following conclusion of executive session, the Board reconvened in open session at 11:05 a.m.  No 
action was taken in executive session. 
  
Upon motion by Director Smith, second by Director Brooks, and unanimous approval by the Board of 
Directors (director Kuich voting by proxy), the Board affirmed the decision of the DRB to deny the 
Cunningham sketch plan and directed legal counsel to prepare a written decision setting forth the 
determination of the Board.  A copy of the Board’s written decision is attached to these minutes and 
made a part hereof as if fully restated herein. 
 
PUBLIC INPUT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
No public comment 
 
JOINT CMD AND CPOA AGENDA ITEMS 
Fly Fishing and Club at Cordillera Member Access 
McBride, Shriner and Broersma have been working with Fly Fishing Outfitters on ensuring the integrity 
of the river parcel and also maximizing beats for property owner use. After receiving complaints that 
booking were regularly full last summer, discussions for 2017 resulted in adding beats, modifying the 
resting schedule, allowing reservation to be made a week in advance and terminating Club at Cordillera 
member access. Upon review the contract, the parties include CMD, CPOA, Cordillera Valley Club and 
Timber Springs. The annual rules and regulations have permitted Club at Cordillera member access by 
paying an annual $500 fee.  
 
Communications regarding the decision to terminate access to the Club at Cordillera could have been 
improved for the 2017 season. After board discussion, both boards agreed to continue Club at Cordillera 
member access to fly fishing for a $500 annual fee for 2017 only. Troon and CMD staff will meet with 
Fly Fishing Outfitters to execute 2017 summer operations, including moving fishing passes to CMD’s 
front desk. 
 
Community Center Planning Update 
Oys updated the Boards on the community center planning process.  
 
As a recap, on March 27, 2017 boards toured athletic club facilities in Gypsum, Arrowhead and 
Singletree. Facilities were: 

17



• Gypsum Recreation Center – a fitness center featuring free weights, cardio, fitness class room,
spin room, community room, indoor track, gymnastics, basketball and indoor pool with
waterslide. Gypsum Recreation Center is open to the public. Tour was led by Jeff Shroll,
Gypsum Town Manager and Scott Ruff, WECMRD Manager.

• Alpine Club at Arrowhead – a 20,000 square foot clubhouse for members only. Facilities include
a fitness center and spa, slope side clubhouse with ski valet services and lockers, heated
swimming pool and hot tub. Nadine Davis, club director, led the tour.

• Sonnenalp Club at Singletree – a private club featuring golf, health and wellness facility, access
to ski services and a restaurant.  Shaun Evans, director of health and fitness, led the tour.

A strategic planning session was held March 28. The planning session focused on objectives to enhance 
the vibrancy and vitality of the community. As a result of the session, both boards unanimously decided 
to initiate a planning and development process for a centralized community center that would serve as a 
multi-use, focal point at the entrance of our community. We anticipate a robust, fast paced and engaging 
process that builds on the strategic initiatives the boards and communities have developed previously 
and simultaneously anticipates the needs and interest of the current and new homeowners in Cordillera 
for generations to come.  

On April 6, 2017 - Joe Helminski, Trevor Broersma and Rachel Oys met with Todd Goulding, Goulding 
Development Advisors to talk about the project, process and immediate next steps. 

April 10, 2017 - a request for qualifications for a consultant to assist CMD/CPOA with land planning for 
a new community center. Scope will include identification of potential sites, feasibility analysis, board 
and community presentations and coordination with Ownership and their consultants. Submissions were 
due in Friday, April 21, 2017.  

April 14, 2017 - Joe Helminski, Trevor Broersma and Rachel Oys hosted a site visit for interested firms. 
Davis Partnership and Barker Rinker Seacat participated in the site visit. 

April 21, 2017 - three firms submitted proposals: Oz Architecture, Davis Partnership and Barker Rinker 
Seacat. 

April 24, 2017 - Joe Helminski, Trevor Broersma, Rachel Oys and Todd Goulding met and reviewed the 
three submissions. All three were invited for an interview. 

April 26, 2017 - Joe Helminski, Trevor Broersma, Rachel Oys and Todd Goulding hosted interviews 
with the three firms. Davis Partnership was unanimously selected as the firm to conduct for the master 
planning process and feasibility study. Schematic design will be determined by boards this fall.  

Todd Goulding will serve as the owner’s representative/project manager. Davis Partnership will serve as 
the architect firm for the master planning and schematic design. A general contractor will be selected via 
Request for Proposal in May. The general contractor will assist with pricing, scheduling and feasibility.  

Feasibility Study Cost Estimates 
May 1 – September 30, 2017 
$40,000 Goulding Development Advisors 

18



$113,000 Davis Partnership Master Planning/Conceptual 
$62,000 Davis Partnership Schematic Design (potential costs if determined by boards this fall) 
$25,000 General Contractor  
$25,000 Geotechnical Surveys  
$15,000 Reimbursables 
$280,000 Total  

Director Bentley moved to approve $280,000, split with CMD. Seconded by Director McBride. 
Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Board voted unanimously. 

Approved $280,000, split with CMD. 

STAFF UPDATES 
• Six candidates were selected to interview for the Equestrian Center Manager position. Second

interviews will take place the week of May 8 with an equine test and a tour of the equestrian
center facilities.

• A chain has been installed at the parking lot entrance of the Grouse on the Green to deter anyone
from parking in the lot.

• The short course opens on May 19 as a walking course only. Play starts each day at 9 a.m. and
standard golf etiquette applies. The course will be closed each Wednesday for maintenance.
Parking is along the south side of Kensington Court. Signs will be posted.

• Staff will be implementing traffic calming elements that McDowell Engineering had
recommended July 2016

o Trevor Broersma, operations director, will check on the Cordillera Way speed bumps.
• Divide entrance stumps will be removed and there is no plan to replace the trees. Insect

mitigation will take place this summer.

ADJOURNMENT 
Director Smith moved to adjourn the Special Meeting of the Cordillera Property Owners Association. 
Seconded by Director Bruce. 

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Board unanimously agreed to  
Adjourn the Special Meeting of the Cordillera Property Owners Association at 12:01 p.m. on Friday, 
April 28, 2017. 

Respectfully submitted, 

___________________________ 
Tracy Stowell 

Executive Coordinator 

19



CORDILLERA PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2017 
0408 CARTERVILLE ROAD, CORDILLERA, COLORADO 

The Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Cordillera Property Owners Association (CPOA) 
was called and held Tuesday, May 16, 2017, in accordance with the applicable statutes of the State of 
Colorado. 

ATTENDANCE 
Present: Ed Shriner, President  

Larry Brooks, Vice President 

Via Telephone: Rick Smith, Assistant Secretary 
Lois Bruce, Secretary  

Absent: Nanette Kuich, Treasurer 

ALSO PRESENT  
CMD Board Members: Bob Egan, David Bentley, and Judith McBride. 

Others Present:  
Rachel Oys, general manager; Alan Pogue, legal counsel; Berniece Gutierrez, human resources and 
administrative services manager; Jaime Walker, communications manager; Trevor Broersma, operations 
director; Tracy Stowell, executive coordinator; Kirk Pliske, public safety director; Joe Helminski, 
recreation director; Todd Goulding, Goulding Development Advisors; Joe Lear, Davis Partnerships; 
Lynn Moore, Davis Partnerships; Scott Nevin, Davis Partnerships; Jay Kocks, Davis Partnerships; and 
Misty Bell, Davis Partnerships.  

CALL TO ORDER 
Director Shriner called to order the Special Meeting of the Cordillera Property Owners Association at 
2:03 p.m.  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
April 28, 2017 Special Meeting Agenda 
Director Brooks moved to approve the May 16, 2017 Special Meeting Agenda. Seconded by Director 
Bruce. 

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Board unanimously by those present. 
Approved the May 16, 2017 Special Meeting Agenda. 

DECLARATION OF QUORUM/DIRECTOR QUALIFICATION 
Director Shriner noted for the record a quorum was present for the purpose of doing the business of the 
Cordillera Property Owners Association. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF NOTICE OF MEETING AT LEAST 72 HOURS IN 
ADVANCEMENT OF THE MEETING.  

20



All board members acknowledged receiving notice of the special meeting at least 72 hours in advance. 
No conflicts of interest were noted. 
 
 
PUBLIC INPUT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
There were 25 property owners and public in attendance at the May 16, 2017 joint special board 
meeting. Attendees introduced themselves and stated why they attended the meeting. In attendance 
were: Cindy Moran, Steve Gamble, Dick Marks, John Moorman, Kathie and Bill Stephenson, Anne 
Roberts, Grace Gamble, Jana Wisenbaker, Kent Barker, Charles Baker, John O’Brien, John Warren, 
Jane Roberts, Barry Gassman, Charlene Koegel, Jeanne Quagliano, Judy Yordi, Angela and Hugh 
Overy, Dee and Jay Tobin, Henry Reed, John and Carolyn Moorman, Elizabet Reed, Rand Garbacz and 
Micky Poage.  
 
JOINT CMD AND CPOA AGENDA ITEMS 
Community Center Planning Process 
Rachel Oys, general manager, led the planning session with a brief timeline of events of the last six 
weeks.  

• Monday, March 27, CMD and CPOA Boards toured three local athletic clubs with different 
community amenities. Those facilities included the Gypsum Recreation Center, the Alpine Club 
in Arrowhead and the Sonnenalp Club in Singletree.  

• Tuesday, March 28, a strategic planning session was held after the half-day tour on March 27. 
The planning session focused on objectives to enhance the vibrancy and vitality of the 
community. As a result of the session, both boards unanimously decided to initiate a planning 
and development process for a centralized community center that would serve as a multi-use, 
focal point at the entrance of the community. This entailed hiring Todd Goulding, Goulding 
Development Advisors (GDA), to serve as the owner’s representative and project manager.  

• April 10, a request for qualifications was posted for a consultant to assist CMD and CPOA with 
land planning and conceptual design for a new community center. 

• April 26, three firms were chosen to interview with staff and Goulding. Davis Partnership was 
unanimously selected as the firm to engage for the master planning process and schematic 
design.  

 
Oys introduced Goulding and Davis Partnership.  

• Goulding was selected as the owner representative in 2016 for the Athletic Center at Cordillera 
renovation, and has worked with numerous other special districts and municipalities such as 
Beaver Creek Metropolitan District, Eagle River Fire Protection District, Eagle River Water and 
Sanitation District and Berry Creek Metropolitan District.  Goulding provides turnkey project 
management services for owners and developers. 

• Davis Partnership will serve as the architect firm and will conduct land planning and schematic 
design for a centralized, premier Cordillera community center. Davis is one of Colorado's largest 
and most broadly capable design firms, offering services in architecture, landscape architecture, 
master planning, interior design, signage design and architectural research. Davis is committed to 
a collaborative multidisciplinary process that integrates the building, its site, interiors and 
signage into a single, coordinated and expressive solution. Davis specializes in a wide variety of 
project types, including community centers, professional offices, health care facilities as well as 
higher education, multifamily residential, hospitality, mixed-use, sports and recreation, research 
and civic projects.  

21



 
Joe Lear, co-leader of design, introduced the Davis team and presented a plan that will be implemented 
in the coming months. The presentation included: 

• Similar Project Review –  Davis Partnership presented similar projects to the boards. The 
presentation featured both private and public facilities and was meant to serve as a guide as to 
what type of facilities, amenities and interior designs of similar communities. 

• Selection of facilities to visit – There was discussion about Boards and key staff touring some of 
the similar facilities that were presented. The boards concurred that additional tours were not 
needed at this time. 

• Program Elements – Davis Partnership listed what program elements Cordillera has verses those 
of other communities and facilities. Meeting attendees gave feedback of what they envisioned 
the community would like in a new facility. 

• General Contractor and RFP Selection – Selection for a general contractor will begin the end of 
May through a RFP process. The general contractor will be able to provide accurate cost 
estimates.  

• Overall Schedule Review – A draft schedule was included in the presentation. The schedule 
includes special board meetings, weekly consultant and staff meetings, community outreach 
events and other key dates.  

• Next Steps – Davis Partnerships will start analyzing all CMD and CPOA owned parcels and 
looking at land use regulations within the PUD. Davis will present these findings at the next 
CMD and CPOA special board meeting on Wednesday, May 24, 2017. 

ADJOURNMENT 
Director Brooks moved to adjourn the Special Meeting of the Cordillera Property Owners Association. 
Seconded by Director Bruce. 
 

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Board unanimously agreed to  
Adjourn the Special Meeting of the Cordillera Property Owners Association at 5:17 p.m. on 
Tuesday, May 16, 2017. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 

___________________________ 
Tracy Stowell 

Executive Coordinator  

22



CORDILLERA PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 24, 2017 
0408 CARTERVILLE ROAD, CORDILLERA, COLORADO 

The Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Cordillera Property Owners Association (CPOA) 
was called and held Wednesday, May 24, 2017, in accordance with the applicable statutes of the State of 
Colorado. 

ATTENDANCE 
Present: Lois Bruce, Secretary  

Larry Brooks, Vice President 

Via Telephone: Rick Smith, Assistant Secretary 

Absent: Nanette Kuich, Treasurer 
Ed Shriner, President 

ALSO PRESENT 
CMD Board Members: Bob Egan, David Bentley, Judith McBride, David Davies and Kitty George. 

Others Present:  
Alan Pogue, legal counsel (via telephone); Berniece Gutierrez, human resources and administrative 
services manager; Jaime Walker, communications manager; Trevor Broersma, operations director; 
Tracy Stowell, executive coordinator; Kirk Pliske, public safety director; Joe Helminski, recreation 
director; Todd Goulding, Goulding Development Advisors; Joe Lear, Davis Partnership; Lynn Moore, 
Davis Partnership; and Scott Nevin, Davis Partnership. 

CALL TO ORDER 
Director Brooks called to order the Special Meeting of the Cordillera Property Owners Association at 
3:00 p.m.  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
May 24, 2017 Special Meeting Agenda 
Director Bruce moved to approve the May 24, 2017 Special Meeting Agenda. Seconded by Director 
Smith. 

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Board unanimously by those present. 
Approved the May 24, 2017 Special Meeting Agenda. 

DECLARATION OF QUORUM/DIRECTOR QUALIFICATION 
Director Brooks noted for the record a quorum was present for the purpose of doing the business of the 
Cordillera Property Owners Association. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF NOTICE OF MEETING AT LEAST 72 HOURS IN 
ADVANCEMENT OF THE MEETING.  

23



All board members acknowledged receiving notice of the special meeting at least 72 hours in advance. 
No conflicts of interest were noted. 

PUBLIC INPUT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
There were 12 members of the public in attendance at the , May 24, 2017 joint special board meeting. In 
attendance were: Buzz Larson, Cindy Moran, Becka Green, Jane Roberts, John Warren, Nancy Boyce, 
Jim Regele, David Staat, Charlene Koegel, Joyce Krasnow, and Judy and Dick Marks. Directors asked 
for public input on any non-agenda items stating that all comments related to the community center 
should be saved for after the community center planning presentation. There was no public comment on 
non-agenda items. 

JOINT CMD AND CPOA AGENDA ITEMS 
Community Center Planning Process 
Community Center Planning Process 
Todd Goulding, Goulding Development Advisors and Davis Partnerships presented an agenda for the 
presentation. Presentation included: 

• Process Overview –
o May 27, CMD and CPOA Boards toured three local athletic clubs with different

community amenities. Those facilities included the Gypsum Recreation Center, the
Alpine Club in Arrowhead and the Sonnenalp Club in Singletree.

o Tuesday, May 28 CMD and CPOA Boards participated in a strategic planning session
focused on objectives to enhance the vibrancy and vitality of the community. As a result
of the session, both boards unanimously decided to initiate a planning and development
process for a centralized community center that would serve as a multi-use, focal point at
the entrance of the community. This entailed hiring Todd Goulding, Goulding
Development Advisors (GDA), to serve as the owner’s representative and project
manager.

o April 10, 2017 a request for qualifications was posted for a consultant to assist CMD and
CPOA with land planning and conceptual design. Ultimately, Davis Partnerships was
selected as the consultant. There is a request for proposal due the week of May 31 to hire
a general contractor. The general contractor is not to be hired to preform construction but
to work with the team to give expertise in the actual costs associated with building a new
structure.

• Program Elements – Davis Partnerships provided a list of program elements that Cordillera
currently has and potentially new elements. The brainstorm list included discussion on the
following:

o Administration – There was discussion on the administration aspect of the project as to
whether to have the administration offices relocated to the new facility or to leave it in
it’s current location.

o Business Center-to provide fax machines, copiers and computers. Board members agreed
to take the business center off the list. Most felt that property owners already have these
amenities in their homes.

o Café – Discussion around whether a café would be as it is now with self-serve coffee or
to bring in a vendor to open a café. The discussion turned to whether food service is
needed or can sustain itself. Majority believed it is not sustainable but agreed that a self-

24



serve coffee bar is sufficient. 
o Catering/Chefs 
o Community Trails (bike, hike, Nordic skiing and snowshoeing) 
o Concert Venues – for Cordillera community events to replace the use of Bearcat as the 

concert venue. Attendees expressed concern over Red Draw residents opposing the 
concert venue aspect of this project with potential noise pollution and the history of 
property owners opposing the Red Draw Ranch wedding and events center. 

o Culinary Training 
o Day Care- This element was up for two different discussions. One relating to potential 

child care for athletic center patrons and the other relating to Cordy Camp. Amongst 
attendees, there was opposition to providing child care to the athletic center but support 
for the existing programming of Cordy Camp. 

o Athletic Center – with all existing programming with an additional in-door running track, 
larger space for additional class types and climbing wall.  There was opposition around 
the in-door running track and the climbing wall. 

o Equestrian Center 
o Event / Conference Center 
o Fishing 
o Ice Rink 
o Multiple Dining Concepts – See Café 
o Offsite Ski property 
o Pet Amenities 
o Pools 
o Post Office 
o Tennis (pickle ball) 
o Winter Activities (skiing, snowboarding, sledding) 
o Transportation – To connect the Cordillera community with Vail and Beaver Creek 

 
The list of amenities is comprehensive and may be reduced or cut during the design process. Consultants 
want the boards to know what type of amenities can be incorporated into a new facility from the 
beginning or planned for in the future. 
 

• Site Evaluation – Davis presented five parcels owned by CMD and CPOA. These parcels 
include: 

o Admin/Post Office Parcel – Three plus acres owned by CMD. PUD allows for recreation 
and community center. 

o Metro District Parcels – Over 18 acres now containing the community operations 
building, dog park and trailer parking. This parcel has flat areas with steep grades going 
up the hill behind the existing facilities. PUD allows for recreation and community 
center. 

o Summit Parcel – Over nine acres where the existing athletic center resides owned by 
CMD. PUD use allows for recreation and community center. Parcel is in the summit and 
would not reflect the objective of having a focal point at the entrance of the community. 

o Trailhead Parcels - Two parcels equaling almost nine and a half acres where the 
Trailhead and pools reside, owned by CPOA. Tract 1 sits on both sides of Fenno Drive. 
PUD allows for recreation and community center. Parcels are in the Ranch and would not 

25



reflect the objective of having a focal point at the entrance of the community. 
o Equestrian Parcels – Consists of two parcels with over 217 acres owned by CPOA. This 

parcel is not part of the PUD and would require special review from Eagle County. The 
parcel is the most desirable for the community center.  

• Architectural Character – Davis presented a slide show of different architectural styles of 
buildings and of different pools designs for pleasure and fitness. The slide show provided 
architectural character concepts for the boards and community as what the best fit would be for 
Cordillera. Discussion from the slide show included massing and light pollution. 

• Schedule – A draft schedule was presented. Events included on the schedule include: 
o June 27: New Homeowner Reception and Summer Wine Tasting 
o June 30: Sounds of Summer Concert Series with Hardscabble 
o July 3: Community Day/Community Center Planning Open House 
o July 4: Vail Gondola Club Fourth of July Barbeque 
o July 6: Community Center Planning Open House at the Cafe 
o July 7 Community Center Planning Open House at the Cafe 
o July 10: Board meeting 
o August 3: Board Meeting 
o August 16: Sounds of Summer Concert Series with the Hazel Miller Band 
o August 18: Board Meeting/Annual Meeting/CPOA Election 
o September 23: Horsin’ Around Day * 
o September 22: Board Meeting 
o October 4: Board Meeting 

*Date change 
  

Visit CordilleraLiving.com/CommunityCenter to learn more.  
 

PUBLIC INPUT REGARDING COMMUNITY CENTER 
Director Brooks and Director McBride opened up public input for comments on the community center. 
Nancy Boyce, John Warren, Buzz Larson, Charlene Koegel and Cindy Moran all had public input. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Director Bruce moved to adjourn the Special Meeting of the Cordillera Property Owners Association. 
Seconded by Director Smith. 
 

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Board unanimously agreed to  
Adjourn the Special Meeting of the Cordillera Property Owners Association at 5:49 p.m. on 
Wednesday, May 24, 2017. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 

___________________________ 
Tracy Stowell 

Executive Coordinator  

26



To: The Cordillera Metro District 

From: Albert and Beth Blumberg 

Subject: Home Site --177 Red Draw, Cordillera Ranch 

 

We have owned Red Draw, Lot 6 at 177 Red Draw for many years.  We had hoped to build a home by 
now, but our commitments remain on the East Coast. 

We would like the opportunity to donate the lot to the Cordillera Metro District and would appreciate 
your consideration of this offer at your next Board meeting, on June 23. 

Please feel free to contact us with any questions.   Albert cell  410-849-2540.  Beth cell  410-215-7291. 

 

Albert and Beth Blumberg 

 

 

 

 

 

 

27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



To: The Cordillera Metro & CPOA Boards 

From: The Kensington Green HOA Board 

Date: June 13, 2017 

Subject: Dave Pelz Short Course 

For many, many years, Cordillera residents have reaped the benefits of a truly top-tier short course—
arguably one of the best in the country--and certainly one of the most beautiful. As noted on our 
Cordillera Living website, Dave Pelz, widely acknowledged for his expertise in the art of golf’s short 
game, designed this exceptional course--one of only two such Pelz-designed courses in the world. 

 With 4,500 rounds played in 2016 (eclipsing previous years), the Short Course continues to be an 
important element in the appeal of Cordillera living, supporting our golf-centered focus, and enhancing 
our property values.  Community members have enjoyed access to cart or walking play, access to 
challenging pitch and putt practice areas, access to individual or group short-game instruction, all while 
enjoying individual or group play without the time commitments of a full eighteen-hole course.  

However, the Metro and CPOA Boards’ decision to reduce play this year to walking only, to eliminate 
golf support services, to suspend pro shop operations (including tee-time reservations), and to leave 
residents to essentially fend for themselves in the absence of an organized operation is an enormous 
disservice to our community.  

Furthermore, while we believe that the Short Course, much like the Trailhead, the Equestrian Center, 
and the Athletic Center, fully justifies ongoing community investment, we also recognize that these 
amenities do not typically generate sufficient income to cover all operating and maintenance costs. 
However, given the loss of the Lodge, the homeowners of Kensington Green, and those in the Divide in 
general, are left with only the Short Course as a community-supported amenity in our area. 

For these reasons, we, the members of the Kensington Green HOA Board, are writing to express our 
disappointment with regard to the drastically-reduced operation of the Short Course this year. Play will 
clearly suffer, given the present circumstances, and in the face of such a decline, we are concerned 
about the Metro and CPOA Boards’ resolve to return this unique community asset to full operation. We 
also fear that the Boards’ present focus on exploring the feasibility of a costly community center may 
come, in part, at the expense of restoring the full use and services of the Short Course, or at a minimum 
that the two might unfairly compete for funding in a zero-sum game. This we cannot support. We firmly 
believe that cart play and all ancillary golf services must be returned to normal function. 

To be clear, the KG Board unanimously believes that resolving the Short Course issues for the benefit of 
the Cordillera community is of the highest importance, requiring immediate action, and that failure to 
address the problem may result in irreparable harm to both Kensington Green residents and to the 
wider Cordillera community.  Kensington Green Board urges the Cordillera Boards to return golf services 
to the extent possible for the 2017 season and to develop a comprehensive plan for 2018 that will return 
this important community asset to full operation. We believe that such a plan must take into account, 
well in advance, the potential loss of The Grouse property for pro shop services and cart storage. 

88



We strongly advocate for the following: 

1 – Adopting the original Troon proposal for the 2017 season, which would make use of paving to allow 
for parking, a mini-house for the pro shop functions such as tee-time reservations and a base for the 
restoration of the usual golf services, and cart play.  

2 - Negotiating a long-term lease or sale with Wind Rose Holdings, with Troon as third-party contractor, 
to take on full responsibility for the Short Course beginning with the 2018 season. Golf management is 
obviously a core competency of Troon and it is our understanding they have informally expressed 
interest in this asset. While the details would have to be determined, we believe, that at a minimum, the 
course must remain a premier short course, that any subsidy from the CPOA in the interim should not 
exceed the current net investment the community already makes each year, and that homeowners, in 
perpetuity, would continue to enjoy free play while walking the course, or pay a modest fee for cart 
rental, with no additional costs.  

In closing, under present circumstances, this exceptional asset is kept from contributing fully to the 
quality of Cordillera living and to the natural enhancement of property values that a premier short 
course surely adds to a golf-centered community like ours. And every day that passes without a solution 
for the 2017 season and beyond only increases the potential harm to the fifty-seven Kensington Green 
homeowners, and to the Cordillera community. 

Respectfully, 

 

Milt Dodson                                      
President, Kensington Green HOA Board 

89



 
Special Projects and Updates 
Community Center Planning Process/Feasibility Study 
March 27, 2017 - Prompted by recent events and community discussions about desired amenities 
and facilities, the boards commenced a strategic planning process in March beginning with a tour 
of recreational and club facilities in the valley.  
 
Boards toured athletic club facilities in Gypsum, Arrowhead and Singletree. Facilities were: 

• Gypsum Recreation Center – a fitness center featuring free weights, cardio, fitness class 
room, spin room, community room, indoor track, gymnastics, basketball and indoor pool 
with waterslide. Gypsum Recreation Center is open to the public. Tour was led by Jeff 
Shroll, Gypsum Town Manager and Scott Ruff, WECMRD Manager. 

• Alpine Club at Arrowhead – a 20,000 square foot clubhouse for members only. Facilities 
include a fitness center and spa, slope side clubhouse with ski valet services and lockers, 
heated swimming pool and hot tub. Nadine Davis, club director, led the tour. 

• Sonnenalp Club at Singletree – a private club featuring golf, health and wellness facility, 
access to ski services and a restaurant.  Shaun Evans, director of health and fitness, led 
the tour. 

 
March 28, 2017 - A strategic planning session was held March 28, after a half-day tour of other 
recreation and community facilities in the valley on March 27. The planning session focused on 
objectives to enhance the vibrancy and vitality of the community.  
  
As a result of the session, both boards unanimously decided to initiate a planning and 
development process for a centralized community center that would serve as a multi-use, focal 
point at the entrance of our community. We anticipate a robust, fast paced and engaging process 
that builds on the strategic initiatives the boards and communities have developed previously and 
simultaneously anticipates the needs and interest of the current and new homeowners in 
Cordillera for generations to come.  
 
April 4, 2017 - Email sent to the community announcing the community center planning process. 
 
April 6, 2017 - Joe Helminski, Trevor Broersma and Rachel Oys met with Todd Goulding, 
Goulding Development Advisors to talk about the project, process and immediate next steps. 
 
April 10, 2017 - A request for qualifications for a consultant to assist CMD/CPOA with land 
planning for a new community center. Scope will include identification of potential sites, 
feasibility analysis, board and community presentations and coordination with ownership and 
their consultants. Submissions were due April 21, 2017.  
 
April 14, 2017 - Joe Helminski, Trevor Broersma and Rachel Oys hosted a site visit for 
interested firms. Davis Partnership and Barker Rinker Seacat participated in the site visit. 
 

90



April 21, 2017 - Three firms submitted proposals: Oz Architecture, Davis Partnership and Barker 
Rinker Seacat. 
 
April 24, 2017 - Joe Helminski, Trevor Broersma, Rachel Oys and Todd Goulding met and 
reviewed the three submissions. All three were invited for an interview. 
 
April 26, 2017 - Joe Helminski, Trevor Broersma, Rachel Oys and Todd Goulding hosted 
interviews with the three firms. Davis Partnership was unanimously selected as the firm to 
engage for the master planning process. Schematic design will be determined by boards this fall.  
 
April 28, 2017 - Board meeting approving the selection of Goulding Development Advisors to 
serve as the owner’s representative/project manager and Davis Partnership to serve as the 
architect firm for the master planning and schematic design. A general contractor (GC) interview 
and selection process via Request for Proposal occurred in May.  The GC will assist with pricing, 
scheduling and feasibility.  
 
May 16, 2017 - Board meeting with introductions to Davis Partnership. Review of planning 
process, initial discussions about programming, similar communities/facilities and next steps.  
 
May 17, 2017 - Email sent to the community with potential objectives, initial ideas for 
programming and services and key deliverables for the project team. 
 
May 22, 2017 - RFQ for General Contract for cost estimating issued and posted. 
 
May 24, 2017 - Board meeting with discussion of programming elements, potential sites and 
architectural concepts. 
 
May 26, 2017 - Community Center planning process update sent via Cordillera Connection with 
summary of the process to date. 
 
May 27, 2017.  - Email sent to Cordillera Equestrian Center boarders.  
 
May 31, 2017 - Three proposals submitted from RA Nelson, Evans Chaffee Construction Group 
and Shaw Construction.  
 
June 5, 2017 - General contractor interviews held with all three companies. Shaw Construction 
was selected. 
 
June 16, 2017 - Post card mailed to property owners sharing information and key objectives.  
 
Feasibility Study Cost Estimates  
May 1 – September 30, 2017 
$40,000  Goulding Development Advisors  
$113,000 Davis Partnership Master Planning/Conceptual 
$62,000 Davis Partnership Schematic Design (potential costs if determined by boards this 

fall) 

91



$25,000 General Contractor  
$25,000 Geotechnical Surveys  
$15,000  Reimbursables 
$280,000 Total  
 
Next Steps 
June 23, 2017- Post card will be mailed to the community and information will be included in the 
Cordillera Connection asking for input.  
 
Conceptual plans will be shared during Community Day July 3 at the TimberHearth and during 
Community Center Open Houses July 6 and July 7 at the Cordillera Café.  Poster boards and 
comment boxes will be available at the Post Office and ACC. All information is also available 
on the website at www.CordilleraLiving.com/CommunityCenter. Send feedback to 
input@cordillerametro.org 
 
Call for Nominations 
The Cordillera Property Owners Association is seeking nominations of property owners to be 
candidates for the position of director on the Association's Board of Directors. Any Cordillera 
property owner may nominate himself or herself as a candidate for director by personally 
delivering or mailing the Nomination Form to the CPOA offices. 
 
The CPOA Board of Directors election will take place at the CPOA Annual Meeting.  There are 
two open positions.  For a copy of the Nomination Form and other information about the 2017     
CPOA Election, please click the links below, visit www.cordilleraliving.com or come to the 
administration building at 408 Carterville Road. 
 
Contact Executive Coordinator Tracy Stowell at 970-926-1923 or tstowell@cordillerametro.org.  
 
Radar/Message Board Trailer 

Staff have researched traffic radar/messaging trailers as one strategy for 
calming traffic in Cordillera.  Staff explored options used by Bachelor 
Gulch, Beaver Creek, Eagle County Sheriff’s Department, CDOT and 
Avon Police Department as well as researched products available from 
Express Toll, All Traffic Solutions, Traffic Signal Controls, Work Area 
Protection and Wanco. The system is mobile, solar powered and 
wireless and has a radar system, message board and a high quality 
camera system. 

92

http://www.cordilleraliving.com/CommunityCenter
mailto:input@cordillerametro.org
mailto:tstowell@cordillerametro.org


Traffic Solutions and Wanco offer traffic calming trailers with multiple 
functions that are required. Pricing for these units which include 
maintenance and warranties start at approximately $45,000 dollars for a 
base model and can range up to $57,000 dollars depending on 
accessories and options. Information will continue to be gathered from 
other companies and will be shared with the board as it becomes 
available.  

 
 
 
 
 

Records Retention 
A community paper-shredding day was held April 6. Paper Wise had their shredding truck at the 
administration building for two hours for property owners to drop off any confidential paper 
recycling. There was 512 gallons of paper waste recycled from property owners and from district 
files that met the retention requirement and were no longer needed. 
  
Information Technology 

• Mitchell and Company replaced and installed 10 new computers for the following: ACC, 
finance director, Aubrey Lewis, post office, Stacey Worley, Dominique Jones, DRB, 
CPA/finance, Joanne Kelly and Bill Wentworth. 

• A new firewall was installed at the ACC and the Trailhead. This along with upgraded 
internet service from Comcast has increased the bandwidth for both buildings. 

• The equestrian center was rewired during the remodel to install a new switch and to add 
additional outlets and network ports to the manager’s office.  

• During the Ranch gate and Divide gate remodels, new switches will be installed, internet 
cables and power will be rewired and new equipment racks installed. New computers and 
monitors will be budgeted for 2018. 

 
Summer Meetings and Events 
 
June 27 New Homeowner Reception 4:30 p.m. and Summer Wine Tasting 5:30 -  

p.m., Trailhead 
June 30 Sounds of Summer Concert featuring Hardscrabble, 5:30 – 8:30 p.m., 

Bearcat Stables 
July 3 Community Day/Community Center Open House, 4 – 8 p.m., Timberhearth 
July 4 Vail Gondola Club Fourth of July Barbeque immediately after the parade 
July 6 Community Center Planning Open House, 3 – 5 p.m., Cordillera Café 
July 7 Community Center Planning Open House, 9 – 11 a.m., Cordillera Café 
July 10 Board Meeting, 1 – 3 p.m., Cordillera Café 
August 3 Board Meeting, 1 – 3 p.m., Cordillera Café 
August 16 Sounds of Summer Concert featuring the Hazel Miller Band, 5:30 – 8:30 

p.m., Bearcat Stables 

93



August 18 Board Meeting/Annual Meeting/CPOA Election, 3 – 5 p.m., Edwards 
Interfaith Chapel 

September 22 Board Meeting, 8:30 a.m. – 2:30 p.m., Cordillera Café 
September 23 Horsin’ Around Day, Cordillera Equestrian Center 2 - 5:30 p.m.  
October 4 Board Meeting, 8:30 a.m. – 10:30 a.m., Cordillera Cafe 

 
Human Resources 
Anniversaries 
April 

• 1 year: Bob Roman, Public Safety 
• 1 year: Cheryl Sawtelle, Recreation 
• 1 year: Jaime Walker, Communications 
• 2 years: Rachel Oys, Administration 
• 4 years: Fred Scheim, Community Operations 
• 11 years: Bill Morris, Public Safety 
• 15 years: Shay Cahill, Administration 
• 21 years: Salvador Garcia, Community Operations 

May 
• 1 year: Tracy Stowell, Administration 
• 1 year: Kurt Mulson, Public Safety 
• 1 year: Mira Jolliff, Equestrian Center 
• 11 years: Antonio Garcia, Community Operations 
• 16 years: Ray Wolfe, Public Safety 

June 
• 1 year: Briony Hunn, Recreation 
• 1 year: Margaret Olle, Recreation  
• 2 years: Bob Norris, Public Safety 
• 2 years: Teri Herwig, Public Safety 
• 4 years: Aida Soto, Community Operations 

 
New Hires 
April 

• Benjamin Seifreid, Equestrian Center 
May 

• Alicia Widmark, Public Safety 
• Kathryn Sepulveda, Public Safety 
• Katherine Fehring, Recreation 
• Olivia Soukup, Recreation 
• Jesus Dozal, Recreation 
• Andrew Coyner, Recreation 
• Chad Cunningham, Recreation 
• Julia Coyner, Recreation 
• Dylan Barker, Recreation 
• Jennifer McDermott, Recreation 

94



• Katie Coyne, Recreation 
• Christian Apps, Recreation 
• Laura Burke, Recreation 

 
Open Positions 
Full-time 

• Barn Hand 
• Mechanic II 
• Finance Director 

Part-time 
• Barn Hand 

Seasonal 
• Healthy Forest Technician 

 
Committees 
Recognition 
The Recognition and Engagement Committee met March 9 to discuss upcoming events including 
highway cleanup, department luncheons and employee events for the summer. The annual 
Community Pride Highway Cleanup was held May 6.  
 
The Recognition committee launched a new program beginning May 1, 2017, with peer to peer 
recognition in the form of “Bird Bucks.” As employees see other employees doing extraordinary 
work, they can recognize their peer with a Bird Buck. Each employee is eligible to hand out two 
“Bird Bucks” each year. Bird Bucks can be redeemed for a $10 gift card to Starbucks, Wendy’s, 
Marko’s, Subway or Smiling Moose.  
 
Congratulations to the following employees who have received Bird Bucks and have redeemed a 
gift card for $10 in the last two months. 

• John Gulick, public safety – Smiling Moose 
• Cody Calcatera, equestrian center – Wendy’s 
• Wolfgang Opel, facilities – Smiling Moose 
• Manny Rodriquez, facilities – Starbucks 
• Stacey Worley, administration – Starbucks   
• Mirra Jolliff, equestrian center – Smiling Moose (twice) 

 
Safety 
The safety committee is working with the Colorado Special District Association (CSDA) to get 
assistance and direction for the safety committee. During this process, staff learned of a safety 
grant program that can be used to reimburse up to 50 percent of purchases which improve safety 
or reduce risk for the organization. As a result, the following purchases were made: 

• Ice cleats for departments to use next winter, reimbursed $590.57 
• Reflectors for community operations, reimbursed $140.68 
• Safety cones, reimbursed $263.20 
• Safety vests, reimbursed $150.80 

 

95



The safety committee also launched the Safety/Facilities Suggestion Box Program May 1, 2017, 
whereby the Cordillera team can provide suggestions on safety or facility concerns throughout 
our community. All relevant comments are entered in monthly drawing to receive a $25 City 
Market gift card. 
 
Training and Career Development 
Bill Wentworth attended the Colorado Wildland Fire Conference in April 2017. The Colorado 
Wildland Fire Conference provides an atmosphere for professionals, policy makers and 
landowners to have solutions-oriented discussions about creating communities in Colorado that 
are adapted to wildfire. The framework for this years’ conference was to “move from awareness 
to action, messaging to mitigation and words to work.” The conference provided an opportunity 
to share knowledge and expertise about reducing a community’s vulnerability to wildfire. 
 
Aubrey Lewis, John Gulick and Bill Morris are completing the Vail Centre Community 
Leadership Academy within the next month. Stacey Worley is enrolled in the next session of 
starting June 27. The course runs June through December  
 
Workers’ Compensation 
Currently there are four open claims in community operations.  
 
Monthly Staff Meetings 
Staff meetings were held May 16 and May 18 to accommodate all work schedules. 

• Tracy and Berniece reviewed the following topics: 
o Open positions – Mechanic II, Barn Hand, Healthy Forest Tech 
o Safety/Facilities suggestion box reminder 
o Bird Bucks 
o Farewell to Cody Calcatera BBQ May 23 
o Recognition committee – summer planning of events 
o Employee handout of information 

 Cordy Camp 
 Project updates 
 Summer events 
 Employee email migration from Constant Contact to Civic Plus 

o Fire extinguisher training led by the Eagle River Fire Protection District Engine 
15 crew 

 
Announcements 
The Equestrian Center Manager recruitment process consisted of the following:   

• Posting Timeframe: April 4-18, 2017.  
• Posting on the following websites: cordilleraliving.com, Vail Daily/Indeed, Vail Valley 

Partnership, equine association and network 
• Application Review: April 19-20, 2017 by Rachel Oys and Berniece Gutierrez  
• First Interviews: April 24-28, 2017 by Rachel Oys, Berniece Gutierrez and Trevor 

Broersma 
• Second Interviews: May 1-5, 2017 by Trevor Broersma, Joe Helminski and Berniece 

Gutierrez; multiple boarders were invited but not available to participate 

96



 
The District received 26 inquiries, 19 applications and interviewed seven candidates. From the 
seven candidates, three were invited back for a second interview. 
 
Shana Devins from Mountain Valley Horse Rescue and Cody Calcatera, conducted a test with 
the top three candidates. All candidates were asked to groom, pick feet, take rectal temperature 
and vitals, worm and simulate vaccinating a horse.  Candidates were also asked to catch two 
horses in the corral, leading them simultaneously, in and out of the gate and navigating them 
through appealing green grass without letting them stop to eat. 
 
Dominique Jones was selected to be the new equestrian center manager. Dominique started 
riding horses as a child and earned multiple ribbons through the Intercollegiate Horse Show 
Association. Dominique has guided trail rides and worked for several different outfitting 
operations in addition to owning and training multiple successful show horses, several of which 
are currently part of her lesson program. Dominique managed the Cordillera Equestrian Center 
for five years and has helped in the interim as a barn hand.  In 2011, Dominique started Stone 
Circle Stables and worked as a part-time veterinary technician. She is a Certified Horsemanship 
Association Certified riding instructor in English, Jumping and Western Disciplines. 
 
Performance Evaluations 
Employee performance evaluation midyear reviews are in progress and will be 
completed by all departments by the end of June 2017.  
 
Communications 
Website 
Since the migration in February, updates to the website occur daily. Updates since March 
include:  

• posting of agendas and minutes, 
• calendar updates, 
• news flash announcements,  
• creation of vehicle registration and other community forms, 
• job positions, 
• DRB guidelines and documents postings, 
• Cordy Camp content and documents, 
• hiking, open house, ponds & river parcel, trail maps, election and community center page 

updates, 
• seasonal image updates and 
• revisions to the employee list, among others. 

 
The communications plan emphasizes the goal to drive traffic to the website as a centralized 
source of information. “Cordillera Connection,” advertisements and other forms of 
communication direct people to the website for further information.  
 
To help familiarize the community with the features of the website, three open houses will be 
held throughout the summer at the Cordillera Café.  

97



• June 26 at 2:30 p.m., 
• July 12 at 10 a.m., and  
• Aug. 3 at noon. 

 
Notify Me 
Built-in website functionality includes the ability for users to subscribe to email and/or text 
message notifications. An email list migration from the existing service, Constant Contact, to the 
website was scheduled to occur Wednesday, May 31. However, out of an abundance of caution 
and to ensure there is no gaps in communication, it was decided to postpose the migration until 
later in the year when public comment on the community center project is complete.  
 
Meanwhile, website users can still subscribe to receive emails from other topic-specific lists such 
as Event Calendar, Job Postings, Bid Postings and Agendas Center.  
 
In addition to having the ability for users to self-subscribe to the content they are most interested, 
centralizing the distribution of content to multiple channels from one location reduces the 
changes of error and gaps in communication.  
 
ABDI GateAccess.net 
ABDI GateAccess.net provides an up-to-date community directory. There is an access portal to 
GateAccess.net on the home page under “Directory and Property Owner Portal.” When logged 
in, community members can update their information while also being able to view their 
neighbors’ contact information. All property owners have access GateAccess.net, but only those 
who opt to share their information will have it included in the directory.  
 
A postcard was designed and sent to all property owners at their mailing address of record in the 
ABDI database the week of April 24. Some property owners do not have current information in 
ABDI and thus must call the administration offices to update their primary phone number before 
they can gain access to the directory. Each property has its own unique password generated by 
the ABDI database. Since the mailing, staff receives phone calls daily from property owners 
seeking their username or assistance in logging in to the system.  
 
Since the mailing, 111 different addresses logged in to GateAccess.net at least once in the last 30 
days, 78 of which registered in the Directory. Below is a breakdown of the operations performed 
once property owners logged in:  

Source Table  Action  Total  

Contact Info  Update  116  

Emergency  Delete  1  

Emergency  Insert  30  

Emergency  Update  26  

Event Guest  Insert  6  

Guests  Insert  47  

Guests  Update  9  

Login Info  Update  59  

98



News  Insert  1  

Pets  Delete  1  

Pets  Insert  30  

Pets  Update  6  

Vacation  Delete  1  

Vacation  Insert  5  

*as of May 30, 2017 
 
Reminders to log in to GateAccess and opt in to the Directory will be sent throughout the 
summer via “Cordillera Connection.”  
 
In addition, a second post card will be mailed July 3 week reminding property owners to log into 
the system and update their information. Communication Manager Jaime Walker will 
periodically be at the Café/Post Office to provide instruction to community members on how to 
navigate the website and GateAccess.net.   
 
Communications since March 23 

• Five “Cordillera Connection” newsletters were sent with an average of 57.4 percent open 
rate and an 8.4 percent click through rate.  

• One Lodge Update was sent. The open rate was 70 percent with a 7 percent click through 
rate. 

• Twelve general announcement flashes were sent on a variety of topics including: two 
letters from the board president, notice of special meetings, open house procedures, 
watermain break, special wine tasting and river closing to name a few.  

• Ongoing social media updates continue.  
• Welcome to summer letter from Judy and Ed for Cordillera Spirit 

 
Advertising 

• Collage Creative designed an ad for “Vail/Beaver Creek Magazine” summer edition. The 
magazine will be out around June 15. Copies of the magazine will be distributed at the 
post office and administration building.  

• Collage Creative designed an ad for “BravoVail!” 2017 summer program.  
• Collage Creative designed the May, June and July “Cordillera Spirit” advertisements. 
• Staff executed an eight-week radio buy with KZYR to promote Cordy Camp, 

Hardscrabble and Hazel Miller concerts as well as Horsin Around Day. A brand 
awareness sponsorship contract with KUNC is being finalized to run during Morning 
Edition throughout the summer; the sponsorship will feature the Cordillera lifestyle.  

• The sponsorship of the Eagle County Fair and Rodeo includes several media impressions, 
logo placements and two banners will be placed outside the rodeo grounds with one being 
within the arena during the event. 

 
Events 

• Hardscrabble Band will perform June 30 with the Hazel Miller Band performing Aug. 16. 
Both concerts will be held at Bearcat Stables with the Crazy Wagon providing food for 
the Hardscrabble concert; a food vendor for the Hazel Miller concert is being identified.  

99



• Promotional efforts are underway for the events including listings on the Vail Valley 
Partnership event website, Facebook events page(s), poster distribution, advertising in 
“Cordillera Spirit,” radio ads, and a press release on each event to be sent to the Vail 
Daily within a week of the event date.  

• Planning is underway to volunteer at the Eagle County Fair and Rodeo in addition to the 
sponsorship.  

• VVP day was canceled due to the lack of response from The Club and from Bearcat.  
• Save the Date 2017 Events!  

o June 27: New Homeowner Reception and Community Wine Tasting 
o June 30: Sounds of Summer Concert featuring Hardscrabble 
o July 2: Community Day  
o July 4: VGC BBQ  
o Aug. 16: Sounds of Summer with the Hazel Miller Band 
o Sept. 23: Horsin Around Day  

 
New Homeowner Program 
To date, 18 new homeowner packets, with a welcome letter and gift, were sent to new property 
owners. In addition, Rachel Oys, general manager, has reached out by phone to the homeowners 
whom we have contact information. 
 
The new homeowner reception is scheduled for June 27 at 4:30 p.m. immediately preceding the 
Community Wine Tasting at the Trailhead. The reception is an opportunity for new homeowners 
to meet the boards, management team and learn about community programs before enjoying an 
evening with their neighbors at the wine tasting.  
 
Communication Plans 
Community center communications plan is being drafted to guild community outreach on the 
project.  
 
A Crisis Communication Plan was drafted after researching other plans; it includes sections of 
the Eagle County’s Emergency Operations Plan and recommendations from ReComm Global on 
managing the media. A “go kit” is being prepared in advance of the event season only to be 
implemented when need arises.  
 
Miscellaneous 

• Board portraits were taken March 24 with makeup pictures May 26. The portraits are 
being used on the website, television monitors and other uses as identified.  

• Fresh content is consistently being loaded to the SmartSigns2Go television monitors 
throughout the community. Recent slides include Aubrey’s community hikes and 
directions for accessing the directory. 

• Anne Clarke with Marchetti & Weaver was asked to explore the possibility of Cordillera 
Valley Club sharing the cost of the video camera and live stream of the Valley course. 
The CVC board declined to make any contribution toward funding the webcam. 

• Graphic Design: The summer hiking maps were reordered; newly designed Cordillera 
envelopes and notecards were also ordered. Collage Creative fixed corrupted business 

100



card files so that new business cards can be ordered when needed; a new collateral piece 
for Vail Gondola Club is in development. 

• Archiving Constant Contact email communication since 2013 per Colorado Special 
District Retention policy is ongoing.  

 
 

 
Vail Gondola Club 
Annual Survey 
2016/2017 Survey Summary – 37 members responded (Very Satisfied = 5, Very unsatisfied=1) 

• Professionalism, knowledge, friendless of staff – 5/5 
• Service and quality of breakfast and après services – 4.7/5 
• Overall cleanliness and comfort of club atmosphere - 4.8/5 
• Club provides a warm and inviting atmosphere – 4.9/5 
• Cleanliness and comfort of facility, care given to equipment and assistance and 

knowledge of staff were identified as priorities.  
• Ninety-five percent of respondents saw the club as highly valuable to their ski and 

snowboarding experience, 5 percent saw it as valuable. 
• All respondents would recommend the Vail Gondola Club to other property owners, 

friends or colleagues.  
• One hundred percent of members who registered a guest locker for family or friend were 

very satisfied with the level of service provided for their guests.  
 
End of season Events 

• Pink Vail: Saturday, March 25. Team Vail Gondola Club raised over $4,000 in 2017 and 
has raised over $50,000 over the past five seasons.  

• Ski and Tee: Saturday, April 22, 9:30 a.m. at the Vail Gondola Club; 2 p.m. Shot Gun at 
the Valley Club 
 

Membership Status (As of 6/5/17) 
• Memberships sold 2016 - 17, resignations - 10 
• Memberships sold 2017 - 1, resignations - 5 
• Current members - 201 
• CPOA/CVCPOA members – 65 percent 
• Total revenue generating units – 198 
• Memberships available – 4 

 

101



 
 
Usage 

• Overall 2016/2017 usage was down 13 percent when compared to 2015/2016. This 
decrease in usage was due to poor snow conditions and a decrease in lodge use.  

 

 
 
 
Athletic Center 
Hours 
Open seven days a week to residents and owners, the ACC provides attendant assistance from 7 
a.m. to 5 p.m. Weight machines, fitness class studio, locker rooms, steam rooms and the pool/spa 
are also available unattended from 5 to 7 a.m. and from 5 to 11 p.m. with a proximity/key card. 

203

178 177 177 176
162

173
182

192 196 201

0

50

100

150

200

250

N
um

be
r o

f M
eb

er
sh

ip
s

Yearly Comparison

Vail Gondola Club Yearly Membeship Levels

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

4219
5081

72977812

5439

7816

10039
10833

12336

10698

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

14000

Sk
ie

r V
isi

ts

Ski Season

Vail Gondola Club Yearly Usage

2007/2008

2008/2009

2009/2010

2010/2011

2011/2012

2012/2013

2013/2014

2014/2015

2015/2016

2016/2017

102



 
Upgraded Equipment 
The cardio room upgrade at The Athletic Center at Cordillera (ACC) was completed in February. 
Renovations include fresh paint, new flooring and new-state-of-the-art Life Fitness cardio 
equipment, as well as enhanced Wi-Fi capability throughout the building. New equipment list 
includes (4) treadmills, (2) elliptical cross trainers, (1) powermill stair machine, (1) flexStrider, 
(2) recumbent bikes, (2) upright bikes, (1) rowing machine and (1) IC7 indoor cycle. Additional 
dumbbell weights and functional training equipment were also added.  
 
Fitness Classes 
Currently the ACC offers eight weekly complimentary fitness classes including yoga, hydro 
cycling, Basi Pilates, Fit Ball and Total Tone. Additional classes will be added late June to 
accommodate the influx in class participants.  
 
Pickleball Court Upgrades 
Crack repair and resurfacing of the pickleball court will be completed the week of June 26. In 
addition, new pickleball nets were added.  
 
Drop-in pickleball is Monday, Saturday and Sunday 9 a.m. to 11 a.m. as well as Tuesday and 
Thursday 3 p.m. to 5 p.m. Tennis racquets, pickleball paddles and balls available by request.  
 
Usage 

• January through May usage was up 14 percent when compared to 2016. 
• Overall usage was up 44 percent when comparing 2015 to 2016. There were over 12,000 

unique visits in 2016.  

 
 
 

2343

3000 3031

4168

4765

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

Vi
sit

or
s

Yearly Usage

ACC Yearly Usage (January-May)

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

103



Cordy Camp/Trailhead Pool Complex 
Camp Dates 

• Registration opened April 17, 2017. 
• Camp is offered Monday through Friday, May 30, through Aug. 15, 2017 for children 

ages 5 to 12. 
• Camp attendees are offered a wide variety of outdoor and educational activities including 

professional golf, tennis and swimming instruction, sports, hiking, fishing, games, arts 
and crafts, educational field trips and adventure days.  

Rates 
$40 Property Owners/Residents, $50 Non-Property Owners ($10 drop in rate). 
 
Staff Training/Requirements 

• Camp Director, Keegan Duffy completed 40 hours of pre-camp training which included 
course work in the following: School Age Child Care Licensing, Mixed-Age Groups in 
Early Childhood Programs, Child Care Administration, Conferencing with Parents, 
Outdoors Safety and Lifeguard Certification.  

• Assisstant Recreation Manager, Aubrey Lewis completed course work in Child Care 
Immunization, School Age Child Care Licensing, Guidance Strategies, Medication 
Administration and Lifeguard Certification. Aubrey will oversee all daily Camp and 
Trailhead operations.  

• All staff members completed 15 hours of pre-camp state required training which 
included: Counselor Handbook/Staff Expectations, Parent Handbook/Rules and 
Regulations, NAEYC Code of Ethical Conduct, Emergency Action Plan and Procedures, 
Federal Emergency Management Agency, Recognizing Child Abuse/Neglect, Standard 
Precautions, Social/Emotional Development, Building Safety and Hazardous Materials, 
CPR/First Aid certification.  

 
Camp Licensing/Inspections 

• Colorado Department of Human Services Childcare License was renewed February 2017. 
• State Fire, Colorado Health and Human Services and Colorado Office of Child Care 

inspections were completed in May and June.  
• State required Radon Test was conducted with Overall Environmental Protection Agency 

(EPA) Protocol average for this testing period was 1.5 pCi/l which is below the EPA 
recommended maximum of 4.0 pCi/l.  

Advertising 
• KSKE-FM, KCCH-FM and KZYR-FM Radio ads 
• Vail Daily Summer Camp Insert 
• Flyer/Signage distribution to local schools 
• Email blast to previous camp attendees 
• Cordillera Connection/Spirt 

104



 
Camp Attendance 
During the summer of 2016 the camp average 28 campers per day. Over the last two seasons 
attendance is split nearly even between resident and nonresident campers.  
 

 
 
Trailhead Pool 

• The pool complex is open daily from 11 a.m. to 7 p.m., Saturday, May 27, through 
Monday, Sept. 4.  

• Lifeguards will be on duty during pool hours of operation.  
• Children age 12 and under should be under adult supervision while using Trailhead 

facilities. 

1404
1325 1371

1604

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

N
um

be
r o

f C
am

pe
rs

Yearly Comparison

Cordy Camp Yearly Attendance

2013

2014

2015

2016

105



 
 
Short Course 
Information and Schedule 

• Opening Day was Friday, May 19. 
• Closing Day is Sunday, Oct. 8. 
• Course will be closed Wednesdays for maintenance.  
• Course is open to Cordillera Property Owners, their guests and Club at Cordillera 

members only. Parking is available on Kensington Court.  
  

Usage/Rounds  
Annually there are between 1,450-1,650 property owner rounds. 
 

 

3898

3057 3099 3172

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

N
um

be
r o

f V
ist

or

Yearly Comparison  (not including Cordy Camp)

Trailhead Pool Usage

2013

2014

2015

2016

4100

5220 5128

4336

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

N
um

be
r o

f R
ou

nd
s

Yearly Comparison

Short Course Yearly Usage

2013

2014

2015

2016

106



 
Summer Community Event Calendar 
Cordillera Metro District staff is offering enrichment events to supplement the robust schedules 
of the Club at Cordillera, Bearcat Stables and valley wide organizations. Highlights include 
concerts, wine tastings, CPR classes, dinners, equestrian, hiking, golf and fly-fishing clinics, 
community day, Independence Day events and more. A full schedule is available at 
cordilleraliving.com. 
 
Art Classes 
Class Schedule 

• Thursdays: Oil Painting 101 5:30 - 8:30 p.m.  
• Saturdays: Oil Painting Open Studio 9 a.m. – noon.  
• Location: Cordillera Café. 
• Instructor: Mio Cirkovic.  
• Contact: 970-376-3184 or miojcir@yahoo.com. 

 

 
Projects 

• New carpet was installed in the administration and operations buildings.  
• Weed spraying around the CMD/CPOA properties will take place starting the first week 

of June, followed by a second treatment of weed spraying in mid-August.  
• The gatehouses at the Ranch and Divide will be remodeled in the first two weeks of June. 

The remodel will consist of new flooring, countertops, cabinets, AC/Heat unit, vanity and 
a toilet in the restroom. All walls will be painted as well as all lighting converted to LED.  

• The short course maintenance facility and Divide gatehouse exteriors as well as the 
Divide entrance wall have all been painted. The project came in $400 over budget due to 
more stucco damage on the entrance wall than anticipated. 

• The road program for 2017 began in May starting with the overlay of Fenno Drive from 
the beginning of Fenno at Squaw Creek to the Ranch gatehouse. The overlay will consist 
of 2-inches of new asphalt over the current roadway, and it will also level areas that have 
settled over time. The areas that need leveling will receive an additional 2-to 4-inches of 
asphalt. Later in July, overlay work will begin on Kicking Horse and Summit Trail. 

• Low sewer manhole covers throughout the community were raised and leveled. 
• In 2016, McDowell Engineering completed a traffic calming assessment. The study 

recommended slowing traffic by installing a roundabout at Fenno and Club Cottage 
Drive. A temporary roundabout was installed the first week of June to test speed-calming 
effects over the summer. It consists of a raised asphalt roundabout with new painted lane-
lines on the road. The temporary roundabout allows for large delivery trucks to drive over 
it to access the golf course. 

• Road striping and parking lot striping throughout the community will take place the week 
of June 5. 

107

mailto:miojcir@yahoo.com


• A speed bump on Fenno near the Trailhead facility has been installed; the Cordillera Way 
speed bump will be installed late June. 

• The Athletic Center shower remodel will be completed the week of June 12. The remodel 
consists of new tile and fixtures in both men’s and women’s shower areas. 

• The Athletic Center pool was closed May 30 and May 31 for routine maintenance. 
• The trailer parking lots are being updated by leveling the parking ground, creating taller 

berms, graveling the parking areas and creating new entrances that will have gates. The 
project will be completed by June 23. 
 

Fleet 
• The car wash hours were extended for the summer season, Monday through Friday, 6 to 

10 p.m. and Saturday and Sunday, 8 to 8 p.m. 
• A new air compressor, metal band saw and metal chop saw were installed in the 

operations building. These new tools are being used to repair equipment after a long 
winter of snow removal.  

• Fleet is working with Western Star to build a new plow truck; it is included in the 2017 
budget. Delivery is expected in November. 
 

Trails 
• All trails are open and are in great condition. 
• All the picnic tables were replaced with new metal picnic tables throughout the property. 
• Staff is researching new signage options for all trails on the property. Current signage is 

wood wrapped metal signs on wood posts. Staff is researching metal signs on metal posts 
that will not need yearly maintenance.  
 

Equestrian Center 
• Installation of indoor horse waterers is complete. 
• The breakroom and office renovation is complete. New flooring, lighting, cabinets and 

drywall were installed. 
• New footing options for the indoor footing replacement project are being researched. The 

footing replacement along with new wall boards will be complete by end of July. 
• Operations worked with Holy Cross and Wattsup LED to find new lighting options for 

the equestrian center. Wattsup LED will cost $29 after a $100 rebate from Holy Cross. 
The monthly cost savings is projected to be around $500.  

• Operations began fence repair around the equestrian paddocks and arenas. 
• Operations is currently looking for a new place to dispose of the equestrian centers 

manure. Currently manure is being taken to the landfill. 
• Two accidents occurred at the barn. An accident debrief was held with staff and trainers 

to review response and protocols.  
• 32 horses are being boarded at the barn (11 of which are property owner horses). 

 

River Parcel and Ponds  
• All water-feature pumps are in operation. 
• Granada Glenn aeration pump has seized and will be repaired before winter. 

108



• Nick began the annual river clean up. 
• New picnic tables were placed at the river beats.  
• The fishing ponds at Granada Glenn and Bearden will be stocked by June 7. 
• Red Draw pond and park underwent a major clean up by the trail staff. Irrigation repairs 

are currently being made with the painting of the pavilion occurring by the end of July. 
 
 

 
Incident Reports 
During the months of March through May, public safety responded to 124 calls ranging from 
alarms (fire, intrusion, low temp and water flow), animal incidents, gate incident, property 
damage, gas leak, homeowner assists, vehicle assist, medical and DRB site contacts. 
 
March 12, public safety was notified of a water detection alarm at 511 Black Bear Trail at 12:22 
a.m. The residence was unlit and vacant. Before Eagle River Fire Protection District (ERFPD) 
was dispatched, patrol walked around the house to investigate. The location of the alarm came 
from the mud room/laundry. Patrol noticed through the window a bottle liquid soap that was 
knocked over and was leaking on the floor. The property manager was notified and ERFPD did 
not respond. The property manager arrived the next morning to clean the mess and reset the 
alarm.  
 
April 15, public safety was dispatched to a water leak by 2485 and 2457 Fenno Drive. Upon 
investigation, water was found coming out of a broken water line belonging to golf course 
maintenance. Water was traveling down Fenno Drive and into property owner’s driveways. 
Patrol reported that water was not getting into homes. Golf course maintenance turned the water 
off and made repairs. 
 
May 9, public safety was notified by an employee of the barn that a woman had fallen off her 
horse in the outdoor arena. Public safety dispatch called 911.  ERFPD, public safety patrol and 
an ambulance responded. Patrol and emergency services arrived on scene to find the patient 
lying on the ground at the entrance of the outdoor arena. The patient was conscious, alert and 
was able to recall the event. She was complaining of head, neck and back pain. Paramedics 
stabilized the patient and transported her to the hospital, non-emergent. ERFPD and public safety 
patrol cleared the call.  

May 15, public safety was notified of a woman who fell from her horse and was hurt. The 
woman was on a trail ride behind the equestrian center, heading toward Grey Hawk. When 
arriving on scene, public safety patrol along with ERFPD found that access to the patient was 
difficult. ERFPD crew members hiked up to the patient with their equipment. When Eagle 
County Paramedic Services (ECPS) arrived, the public safety director loaded the ambulance 
crew and equipment in the patrol vehicle and was able to drive up the trail to gain access to the 
patient. The patient was stabilized and taken down to the ambulance then transported to Vail 
Valley Medical Center. All agencies involved demonstrated exceptional team work to safely get 
the patient the medical care needed. 

109



 
May 18, the public safety director and patrol responded to 65 Rodeo Drive for a lost puppy. 
Upon arrival, the owner was upset and stated he just adopted a puppy and did not realize when 
he opened the front door the puppy was right behind him and darted outside. The owner had 
already been looking for about 30 minutes. Golf course maintenance along with numerous 
homeowners on the Ranch called the gates to report seeing a puppy running on the golf course 
by the Fairways and on Red Tail Ridge. After two hours of searching the public safety director 
and patrol cornered the puppy at the bottom of Red Draw in Mr. Shriners driveway. The puppy 
was reunited with her owners and they were extremely grateful for public safety’s help. 
 
Construction Regulations 
The construction season is here and work on job sites has increased. Property owners and public 
safety patrols have noticed workers trying to work late without notification and approval. Public 
safety has addressed these violations by educating contractors of the construction policy. 
From the DRB Design Guidelines 

7.02.16 Construction Hours & Noise 
Construction Activities shall be limited to the following hours of operation: 
Monday through Friday: 7:30 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. 
Saturday: 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. 
Entrance to work site for the purpose of set-up only, is permitted one half hour 
prior to hours of operation. (M-F 7 a.m.) During the half-hour set-up, the 
operation of heavy equipment, compressors, impact tools, or any activity that 
creates noise; shall be prohibited. At no time shall contractors, sub-contractors 
or laborers park and wait at the gatehouses before 7:00 a.m. No construction 
related activities or work vehicles are allowed on premises after 6 p.m. That 
Saturday work hours are 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. (through the gate at 9 a.m. and out by 5 
p.m.). The use of large trucks and heavy equipment are prohibited on Saturdays. 
No work on Holidays and Sundays. These Holidays include: New Year’s Day, 
Easter, Memorial Day, July 4, Labor Day, Thanksgiving and Christmas. 
NOTE: Exceptions for construction activity outside the construction hours may be 
granted from Cordillera Public Safety Director. The owner or contractor must 
contact the Public Safety Director for approval. 
At all times, each Owner shall use reasonable efforts to minimize external noise 
resulting from Construction Activity. No loud music shall be permitted. 
 

Pet Policy 
Property owners and public safety patrol have noticed numerous occasions of off-leash dogs 
roaming the community. Public safety has responded to calls and has educated owners of the 
community’ pets policy. On a few occasions animal control was notified.  
From Cordillera’s Planned Unit Development Control Document: 

Section 1.13 Impact Control. The following impact restrictions apply: 
t. Dog Control. All dogs within the development property shall be subject to 

the Cordillera Wildlife Mitigation Agreements and the following rules: 

a. Dogs may not at any time be permitted to roam unattended or uncontrolled 
beyond its owner's property line; 

110



b. All lots on which dogs reside must be provided with a fenced or enclosed 
area which will limit dogs’ movement from the site. Fence or enclosure to 
be subject to Design Review Board approval; 

c. When not on owner's property, dogs must be secured on a leash of no more 
than 12 feet in length and under the direct control of its owner or authorized 
representative; and 

d. No more than two dogs are permitted on any lot in Cordillera. Offspring less 
than six months in age shall be the only exception to this rule. 

 
Healthy Forest 
The grouping of properties for wildfire inspections were originally placed in groups according to 
the neighborhood hazard rating. Anchor Point determined the hazard ratings during their 
inspections of vegetation and terrain. The neighborhoods were then divided into five groups with 
the most hazardous areas being inspected and mitigated first. There have been two full cycles of 
inspections, going through all five groups of properties, with this year beginning the third cycle. 
  
Property inspections consider the fuels that exist in the Home Ignition Zone (HIZ). The three 
zones that are examined are the first 30 feet from the drip edge of the structure (zone 1), the area 
100’ to 150’ from the drip edge depending upon terrain (zone 2), and then from the end of zone 2 
to 210’ or the property line (zone 3), whichever comes first. The overall concept is to go from 
only removing dead vegetation in zone 3 to thinning and removal of dead vegetation in zone 2 to 
removing all ladder fuels and to have adequate spacing between plants and the drip edge in zone 
1. The desire is to make the fire a low burning ground fire by the time it gets to the structure.  
 
The Healthy Forest program sent out the inspection letters to the residences at the beginning of 
April. The inspections will start this month on the properties listed in the letter below. 
Inspections on open space are underway and the hazardous vegetation is being removed.  
 

April 3, 2017 
 
Dear Cordillera Property Owner, 

 
In 2006, the Cordillera Property Owners Association (CPOA) began efforts to 
address wildfire hazards throughout the community. At the end of 2011 all private 
properties had addressed their wildfire mitigation issues. In 2012 Cordillera 
started the maintenance cycle of the program utilizing the same five-year 
schedule that was used for initial work; every property will be inspected on a five-
year cycle to assure wildfire mitigation is maintained. The neighborhoods listed 
below are scheduled for inspection for maintenance of their wildfire mitigation 
work this summer of 2017. Property owners in these areas who have not 
maintained this work should do so this summer.  
 
Experts advise that the two most important considerations in protecting a 
structure’s ability to survive a wildfire are the defensible space around the home 
and the roofing material. Defensible space refers to a property owner’s efforts to 
manage the vegetation around their home to minimize the dangers from fire. In 

111



other words, the less there is to burn the less heat that there is to transfer to your 
home. Embers from fires travel long distances and land on the ground and roofs. 
Combustible debris and roofing material can catch fire and ignite the home. 
While the weather cannot be predicted, or controlled, there is much property 
owners can do to make their properties more fire resistant.  
   
When weather permits, during the months of April and May, Public Safety Staff 
will be walking properties to evaluate any work needed to be done for 
compliance. 
 
Requirements for maintenance are the same as they were for the original 
mitigation. It is in the best interest of both the property owners and the community 
to address the wildfire concerns. For detailed information regarding wildfire 
mitigation contact Bill Wentworth, Cordillera Healthy Forest Project Manager, 
at 970-306-3632 or bwentworth@cordillerametro.org.  

 
Important Note:  Effective 2009 thru 2024, the State of Colorado allows property 
owners filing Colorado tax returns to deduct up to $2,500 for costs incurred for 
wildfire mitigation. 
 
NEIGHBORHOODS DUE FOR RECERTIFICATION IN SUMMER OF 2017 
(WILL BE INSPECTED FOR MAINTENANCE IN 2017) 
 
Saddle Ridge – Very High 
• Outer Saddle Ridge (422 to 680)  
The Timbers and Fairways – Very High 
• Timber Trail 
• West Timber Draw 
• East Timber Draw 
Red Draw and Peregrine – Very High 
• Peregrine 
• Red Draw (to Redtail) 
• Fenno (2524 – 2808) 

 
Douglas-fir Beetle 
Three Douglas-fir trees in front of the Trailhead building that were dying and could be a hazard 
to owners and guests were recently felled with an additional two more to be removed soon. Don 
McDracken and Matt Schlitz of the Colorado State Forest Service, inspected the dying trees and 
determined it was due to the Douglas-fir Beetle. They have noticed an increase in activity of the 
fir beetle locally and suggested implementing a mitigation strategy which staff is in the process 
of developing. Below is a brief description from the Colorado State Forest Service of the 
Douglas-fir beetle:  
 

112

mailto:bwentworth@cordillerametro.org


Douglas-fir beetle usually kills only small groups of trees, but during major 
outbreaks groups of 100 or more infested trees are not unusual. Infested trees 
may occur on a landscape-scale across multiple drainages during outbreaks. 

• Adult males are stout, cylindrical beetles less than ¼-inch (4-6 mm) long, or 
smaller than a grain of rice. The head and midsection are black and the wing 
covers are typically reddish-brown. 

• Adult females typically initiate an attack on new host trees, and mating then 
occurs near the entrance hole bored through the bark. 

• Larvae are white, C-shaped, legless grubs with an amber colored head 
capsule. 

Symptoms of Infestation 

Outbreaks tend to be associated with mature Douglas-fir forests, especially 
following extended periods of below normal precipitation. The most apparent 
indicators of Douglas-fir beetle infestation are small groups of dead and dying 
Douglas-fir trees. When a tree is dying from Douglas-fir beetle, its needles fade 
from green to red-brown before starting to drop off. Fading foliage occurs about 
one year after trees have been attacked, typically after adult beetles have 
emerged. Other symptoms of Douglas-fir beetle infestation may include: 

• The presence of reddish-brown boring dust around the base of trees and within 
the cracks and crevices of the bark. 

• Streaming resin along the main trunk (not always present), usually white 
and/or clear in appearance. 

• Vertically oriented galleries under the bark, with alternating larval 
side galleries. 

• Woodpecker damage, where the birds have stripped portions of the bark from 
infested trees in search of larvae, leaving accumulations of bark at the base of 
trees. 

• Exit holes on the bark surface, after the adult beetles emerge from 
infested trees. 

Management Options 

Ongoing management of Douglas-fir forests is the most effective long-term 
strategy for reducing tree losses from Douglas-fir beetle. Thinning overly dense 
stands of trees, to reduce the competition between trees, is the most successful 
forest management strategy to promote tree vigor. Options for management 
include: 

1. Remove infested trees and slash, wind-thrown trees susceptible to Douglas-fir 
beetle infestation, Trees already infested by other insects and diseases, excess 
numbers of older trees, as the beetles most frequently attack the largest trees 
first. 

113

http://csfs.colostate.edu/media/sites/22/2016/01/Douglas-Fir-Beetle-QuickGuide2016.pdf


2. Utilize packets containing the pheromone Methylcyclohexanone (MCH) 
disrupt the attraction of incoming beetles and can be used to reduce attacks 
on Douglas-fir trees. 

3. The use of insecticides has proven effective in preventing Douglas-fir beetle 
infestation. Certain formulations of carbaryl and pyrethroids that are 
registered and have been tested for effectiveness are the primary insecticide 
sprays used to help reduce the likelihood of attacks on individual trees. 

4. Solar treatments can be used to reduce Douglas-fir beetle populations in 
infested stands. These treatments involve felling infested trees and stacking 
cut logs in an area with full sun before covering them with clear plastic. The 
solar treatment of infested trees creates conditions unsuitable for survival of 
Douglas-fir beetles, forcing them to either relocate or die. 

5. Trap trees serve as traps for recently emerged, adult beetles. After the trap 
trees become infested with beetles, trees are removed and destroyed, usually 
during the fall or winter, while all of the Douglas-fir beetles are still inside. 

Open Houses 
In April, communication was sent via email to all realtors listing properties in Cordillera, to the 
Vail Board of Realtors and to property owners regarding the modified open house process. The 
official transition date was May 26, 2017, which gave ample time for the realtors to get 
Cordillera approved signage made, if needed. 
 

RE: Cordillera Open Houses 
 
Dear Realtors,  
 
Cordillera Metro District (CMD) is pleased to announce new open house 
procedures. Effective May 26, 2017, open houses will be permitted from 11:00 
a.m. to 7:00 p.m. daily with no restrictions on the days of the week. Unlike in the 
past, Realtors, not Cordillera Public Safety, are responsible for placing and 
removing the signs. Realtors are required to use the approved signs 
(requirements are outlined below) and contact the Divide Gate House with 24-
hour notice giving day, time and address of the event. The Divide Gate House 
email is: dividegate@cordillerametro.org. Open House procedures including 
days and times are subject to change in the future.  
 
All other guidelines pertaining to open houses in Cordillera remain in effect. 
Sale yard signs are still not permitted.  
 
CMD has approximately 30 signs with arrows that are available for purchase for 
$ 50 on a first come, first serve basis. Please contact Kirk Pliske to purchase the 
signs. Checks should be made out to Cordillera Metro District. 
 
Please contact Kirk Pliske, public safety director, at 970-569-6261 or 
kpliske@cordillerametro.org with any questions.  
 

114

mailto:dividegate@cordillerametro.org
mailto:kpliske@cordillerametro.org


Sign Template Requirements are as follows: 
Color: Green PMS 3305C 
Dimensions: 18 inches high by 24 inches wide Steel Panel Digital Print PMS 
3305C 
Logo: If not using Sign Design in Eagle Vail, please contact Cordillera Metro 
District for the logo. 

 
 
Gates  
All gates mechanisms in the community—Divide, Ranch and CVC—will be updated and 
replaced in coming weeks.  
 
Cordillera Wildlife 
Bears have been active throughout the community for a few months. On numerous occasions 
bears have tried to get into the dumpster at the ACC. Communication is ongoing reminding 
residents to use bear resistant trash cans and follow the community’s policy regarding the 
allowed hours in which trash containers can be placed curbside: no earlier than 7 a.m. and 
removed by 7 p.m. the evening of trash pickup.  
 
Education and Training 
Bill Wentworth, who oversees the healthy forest program, attended the Colorado Wildland Fire 
Conference in Pueblo in April. The mission statement of the conference is “Moving from 
Awareness to Action, Messaging to Mitigation and Words to Work.” The information acquired 
at the Conference allows staff to stay up to date on innovative research, case studies and actions 
to create fire adapted communities. 
 

COLORADO WILDLAND FIRE CONFERENCE 2017 
 
The Colorado Wildland Fire Conference provides an atmosphere for 
professionals, policy makers and landowners to have solutions-oriented 
discussions about creating communities in Colorado that are adapted to wildfire. 

115



 
The framework for this years’ conference was to “move from awareness to action, 
messaging to mitigation and words to work.” It provided an opportunity to share 
knowledge and expertise about reducing a communities’ vulnerability to wildfire. 
 
Some of the best “break out” sessions at this years’ conference had titles such as:  
 
• Fire-wise landscaping: An opportunity to turn the first thirty feet into a fire-

wise, water-wise and pollinator/people friendly space. (The first thirty feet 
from the structure is the most critical in terms of “knocking a fire down”, to 
lessen the severity of the fire when it gets to the structure.) Here in Cordillera 
we are faced with convincing property owners that they can have a pleasant 
appearing landscape and still be fire-wise. Irene Shonle spoke extensively 
about plants and landscaping do’s and don’ts of landscaping in the HIZ. Irene 
is the Director of Extension in Gilpin County and has been working with 
mountain residents on forestry/fire and gardening issues for over fifteen 
years. 

• Retro-fits to Prevent Structure Ignition. Things that can be done to lessen the 
chance of a fires’ ability to ignite a structure. Things like using 1/8” screening 
in attic vents and using steel mesh window screens rather than plastic or 
fiberglass. Keith Worley presented this session. Keith has served as the lead 
for the Waldo Canyon Fire FAC Assessment Team and the Black Forest fire 
Assessment Report to the Governor’s Office. He’s a former NFPA Fire-wise 
Community Advisor for CO, TX, NM, UT, KS, NE and WY. Keith has written 
12 CWPPs, manages multiple Fire-wise Community programs, and assists 
homeowners with their insurance companies. 

• Does Homeowner Mitigation Work? Comparing the results from the Fourmile 
Canyon and Cold Springs Fires. This presentation came from the results of 
first hand inspections of the structures that burned and the ones that survived 
these devastating fires. The speaker for this was Jim Webster. Jim is the 
Wildfire Partners Program Coordinator in boulder County’s Land Use 
Department. He developed this nationally recognized, public-private model in 
collaboration with over 35 partners. He wrote Boulder County’s CWPP. Jim 
has designed and implemented innovative, multi-disciplinary natural resource 
initiatives for more than 25 years. He received his M.S. in Environmental 
Management from Duke University. 

 
FYI  
Notices and updates on road construction and the gate replacements were communicated via 
Cordillera Connection and posted on the website. The communication urged slower speeds, 
caution and patience while traveling in the construction zones.  
  

116



Design Review Board 
Buildout Analysis 

      
Buildout Analysis 

Neighborhood 
Total Units 
Allowed * Completed Review Process 

Under 
Construction 

% 
Buildout** 

Divide (minus 60 
Lodge) 202 164 0 4 81 percent 
Ranch 400 315 1 3 79 percent 
Summit 248 98 0 5 40 percent 
Totals (PUD 910) 850 577 1 12 68 percent 
* 910 is total density allowed by the current PUD     
** Does not include properties under construction     
Under Construction   Review Process   
Divide Status  Divide  Status 
220 Casteel exterior materials     
270 Cordillera Way Final inspection     
322 Granada Glen Framing - ILC     
465 Little Andorra Framing - ILC      
      
Ranch Status  Ranch  Status 
2623 Fenno Final inspection  121 Elk Springs Tr HOLD  
832 Forest Trail Framing  166 Peregrine Dr Sketch 3.14.17 D  
205 Elk Springs Tr Sitework     
      
Summit Status  Summit  Status 
1282 Gore Trail Framing - ILC     
49 Lady Belle Way Framing ILC     
96 Lady Belle Way Framing ILC     
      
Territories  Status  Territories   Status 
7 Territories  framing - ILC     
19 Territories  Sitework     
      

 
  

117



Design Review Board 
     
Gene Shanahan – Chairperson   Dennis Moran – Alternate Board Member  
David Staat – Board Member    Eric Jung -Alternate Board Member  
Lee Hegner - Board Member    Millie Aldrich – DRB Administrator 
Judy LaSpada - Board Member   Paul Miller - Architect Director  
Henry Reed - Board Member    Scott Sones - Landscape Arch. Dir. 
     

Feb. 14, 2017 DRB Agenda 
Administrative Offices, 408 Carterville Road 

All times are approximate and subject to change 
8:30 a.m. Call to order 

Approval of January Minutes  
Review Agenda - Project overview 
  

9:45 a.m.   O’Connor Residence – 594 Winchester Trail – Final Review 
  Applicant: Kyle Webb – K.H. Webb Architects   
 
10:30 a.m.   M.L.W.S. Residence – 205 Elk Springs Trail – Sketch Review #4 / Variance 
Request 
  Applicant: Michael Lauterbach, owner 
 
11:15 a.m.   Cunningham Residence – 166 Peregrine – Sketch Review #3 
  Applicant: Brent Alm – Architect, Grant & Susie Cunningham / owners   
 
  Staff Approvals – 0 
 

Single Family Construction Starts - 0 
 

Single Family Final Inspection – 1 
810 Cordillera Way – renovation  
  

  Staff Updates 
 
1562 Red Draw – Combine lots 20 & 21 update 
Active Construction Sites / Build-out Analysis 

 
Compliance Officer Updates   

 
Other Business 
 

 
12:45 p.m. Adjourn  
 
 
 

118



 

Design Review Board - Minutes 
Tuesday, 14, February 2017 

408 Carterville Road, Cordillera, Colorado 
ATTENDANCE 
Members Present Gene Shanahan Chair                 
   David Staat, Board Member 
   Lee Hegner, Board Member 

Judy LaSpada – Board Member 
Henry Reed – Board Member 
Eric Jung – Alternate Board Member 

Members Absent Dennis Moran – Alternate Board Member 
Others present:  Millie Aldrich - DRB Administrator 
   Paul Miller – DRB Architectural Consultant      
    
CALL TO ORDER                           
8:35 a.m. 
        
DECLARATION OF QUORUM/DIRECTOR QUALIFICATION 
Declaration was noted for the record a quorum was present for the purpose of doing business of 
the Cordillera Design Review Board.  
 
DISCLOSURE MATTERS – Eric Jung has a conflict of interest and removed himself during the 
discussion of 1562 Red Draw – Combine lots 20 & 21.  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA –DRB unanimously approved the agenda. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES – Minutes from Jan. 17, 2016 approved, moved by Hegner second 
by Staat all in favor. 
 
PUBLIC INPUT –  
 Jennifer & Charlie Hays resident at 218 Peregrine, Laura Louise & Anric Blatt residents at 138 
Peregrine, Chuck Perrin resident at 165 Peregrine all have several concerns with the proposed 
design for 166 Peregrine such as: site disturbance, size of the house compared to size of lot, two 
driveway cuts off Peregrine, four garage bays, four story appearance on east elevation, tower 
element, roof top hot tub deck, commercial appearance on east elevation, large amount of glass 
and amount of light pollution.  
 
 
DRB ACTION ITEM –  

1. O’Connor Residence – 594 Winchester Trail                                     
               9:50 a.m.   
Review: Final  
Present: Kyler Webb / KH Webb Architects 
Final – Approved with comments. See memo located on Page 3 

119



 
2. M.L.W.S. Residence – 205 Elk Springs                                      

  10:35 a.m.   
Review: Sketch 
Present: Mike Lauterbach 
Sketch – Approved with comments. (See memo located in Page 5) 
 

3. Cunningham Residence – 166 Peregrine                                    
               11:16 a.m.   
Review: Sketch 
Present: Brent Alm – Architect, Grant Cunningham – Owner (via telephone) 
Sketch – Denied. See memo located on Page 6 

 
STAFF APROVALS – 0 
 
FINAL INSPECTION - 1 

• 810 Cordillera Way - renovation 

ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATES 
• Active Construction Sites  
• Owner Eric Jung, 1562 Red Draw would like to combine his lots 20 & 21 and amend 

the building envelope 
o The Cordillera Open Space which was sold to the previous owner must remain 

as open space. 
o Wetlands is indicated on lots 20 & 21 and must be avoided. 
o Owner is presently modifying building envelope to create a caretaker unit on 

previous lot 20 property. 
o Owner to provide email or letter from ERWSD that ERWSD requirements 

have been satisfied  
 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
ADJOURNMENT          
 12:38 p.m.  
There being no further information before the Cordillera Design Review Board, the meeting was 
adjourned. 
 
 
Design Review Board –  Staff Memorandum                Date: 2/14/2017 
Applicant:   O’Connor Residence 
Location:   594 Winchester Trail / Lot 19 Territories 
Representative:  Kyle Webb – K.H. Webb architects 
DRB Coordinator:  Millie Aldrich 
Review:   Final 

120



 
Project Overview 

The O’Connor Residence is a new residence located at 594 Winchester Trail / lot 19, Territories. 
The site is 35.331 acres. The proposed residence is 4,564 square feet, guest house 930 square feet 
and garage 1027 square feet, per drawing set 1/26/17. The O’Connor Residence is being reviewed 
for Final and is subjected to the Summit / Territories Design Guidelines.  
 
Board Comments: 

SITE PLAN 
• Existing tree line on survey to be verified 

o Avoid disturbing existing aspen grove with grading and improvements. 
• Quantity of aspens may be reduced, but extend existing aspen grove around the northeast 

section of property.  
• Provide engineered septic design, coordinate with site and landscape plan. 
• Boulder retaining walls greater than 4 feet require engineered design.  
• The water line is for fire suppression only. Territory lots are on well water, provide well 

location and / or well house.  
• Gravel is not an acceptable drive material. 

o Chip seal would be acceptable to continue the same look as the existing road.  
• Modify L.O.D. around transformer and phone pedestal to include trees and revegetation.  
• Clarify the 5’ inflammable barrier along the outside of any structure. 

o Permanently irrigated beds are acceptable within the 5’ zone.  
• Clarify sod roof vegetation  
• Entry Gate must be wood, match house. 

o Additional information needed on the entry gate, operating access.  
o EMT access 

 
ARCHITECTRUAL 
• An all metal roof is acceptable with secondary sod roofs 

o Metal roof will be rusted cor-ten. 
o All metal roof requires a variance.  

• Knox box location on plan and elevation.  
• 4.03.06 Windows – “Window arrangements should be designed in proportion to the 

structure and form of the building and should adhere to a traditional rectangular pattern in 
keeping with the overall design them.”  Trapezoid windows and other unusual shape and 
size windows are generally not encouraged.  

o Gable end window wall requires a variance.  
• Summit roof overhangs 5.03.02 / 5.04.02, overhangs which are 36” deep minimum are 

preferred, and should be supported by sturdy, exposed rafters and other structural 
members.  

o Roofs on the eave edge have zero overhangs and requires a variance. 
• The roof eave profile is very think and there is no expression of structure. “Fascias 

constructed of multiple layers of wood shall also be incorporated into the design of roofs. 
If rafter tails are exposed, narrow fascia materials may be used.” 4.03.4A 

• Building Height 

121



o A delineation of proposed and existing grades is not complete in the drawing 
provided A105. Odd and even foot intervals are shown on the building height plan 
whereas the topographic survey is showing only 2’ contour intervals. Where did 
contour 8505 come from/ It appears that contour 8504 is mislabeled, making the 
building height at calculation point #4 35’-9.”  

o Plan is difficult to read. 
• Roofs 

o Maximum allowable pitch for a primary roof plane is 8:12, proposed is 10:12. 
o Roof pitch requires a variance.  

• Flat Roofs 
o Close to one-third of the roof forms are expressed as flat roofs: 
o “with the exception of small flat roof sections, the pitch of secondary roofs shall 

be at least 3:12… Flat roofs are not permitted as primary roof form.”  
o Flat sod roofs with a variance will be allowed as a secondary roof.  

• Details 
o Need clarification on roof edge details A5.04 

 
General Comments: 
Approved with comments and variance application and fee of $500 required. 
 
 
Design Review Board - Staff Memorandum    Date: 2/14/2017 
Applicant:  Elk Spring Trail Residence 
Location:  205 Elk Spring Trial / Lot 15, Filing 7 
Representative: Michael Lauterbach   

DRB Coordinator: Millie Aldrich 
Review:  Sketch  

Project Overview 
The Elk Spring Trail Residence is a new residence located 205 Elk Spring Trail / Lot 15, Filing 7. 
The site is 2.432 acres. The proposed residence is 4,116 square feet, per drawing set 1/26/17. The 
Elk Spring Trial Residence is being reviewed for Sketch and is subject to the Ranch Design 
Guidelines. 
 
Board Comments: 
 
Site and Landscape Plan  
Site Plan: 

• Show location for address marker, provide detail and lighting cut sheets 
• Provide stamp survey. Coordinate existing trees to be removed with site and 

landscape plans.  
• The driveway grading needs some refinements 

o Lowering the garage floor an additional 18”-24” will help the driveway  
o Reduce double boulder wall retaining wall and help to save the existing 

evergreen 
• Parking area has a 10 percent cross slope 

122



Landscape Plan: 
• The following plants do not appear on the Fire Wise list of acceptable plants within 

30 feet of the structure and should be replaced unless irrigated.  
o Mountain Snowberry 
o White Snowberry 
o Feather Reed Grass 

• No irrigation calculation is provided, permanent or temporary.  
o Indicate rain sensor 

• No plant material is proposed in the bench of the retaining walls below the 
hammerhead. The walls should be softened by vegetation. 

• Several deciduous trees, south of the house are proposed to remain on the 
Landscape Plan but do not appear on the Site Plan, coordinate.  

Architectural 
• Metal roofing should be used as an accent to the main roofing material. Section 

4.03.04E 
o All metal roof requires a variance / deviation from Design Guidelines  
o Corrugated cor-ten roof, natural weathered. 

• Metal siding is listed as a prohibited material for use as exterior siding. Section 
4.03.05H 

o Metal siding would requires a variance / deviation from Design Guidelines  
o Corrugated cor-ten siding, match roof, natural weathered.  

• Height Calculation are incorrect, revise grade elevations.  
General Comments 

A deviation from the Design Guidelines requires a variance application and fee of $500,  
o applicant has submitted and paid.  

 Board will accept all metal corrugated cor-ten roof and corrugated cor-ten accent siding. 
 
Sketch –Approved with comments 
 
 
 
Design Review Board – Staff Memorandum    Date: 2/14/2017 
Applicant:  Cunningham Residence 
Location:  166 Peregrine / Lot 6- Filing 17 
Representative: Brent Alm, Architect / Grant Cunningham, Owner 
DRB Coordinator: Millie Aldrich 
Review:  Sketch  
 

Project Overview 
The Cunningham Residence is a new residence located at 166 Peregrine / lot 6 filing 17. The site 
is 1.57 acres. The proposed residence is 7,615 square feet, Storage / Mechanical 1,375 square feet, 
Garage 900 square feet per drawing set 1/6/17. The Cunningham Residence is being reviewed for 
Sketch and is subjected to the Ranch Design Guidelines.  
 
Board Comments: 

GENERAL –  

123



4.01.00. “The design style for the Ranch is based upon the heritage of its location in the 
mountains of the American West. The romantic yet elegantly rustic lodges like the Old Faithful 
Lodge at Yellowstone, Timberline at Mt. Hood and the alpine shelters and lodges of Glacier 
Nation Park establish the context of this design theme. This western heritage is further defined 
by the simple, direct, yet picturesque ranch buildings still seen on the lower mountain slopes and 
valleys of Western Colorado. 

While the design style has its origin in the early, rustic mountain structures of the American 
West, the overall design goal for the Ranch is to create innovative structures and architectural 
solutions which respond to current lifestyles and incorporate up-to-date building technology. 
The intent is not to mimic the false fronts of cowboy towns, recreate rustic lodges or reproduce 
simple log cabins. Rather, design solutions should advance an architecture which responds to its 
location and respects its regional heritage. 

The architectural style expresses a direct use of natural materials which are an outgrowth of 
their setting and which have an appropriate scale to the surrounding mountains. Massive stone 
abutments, large timber trusses and heavy log framing are examples of materials typically 
associated with this theme.” 
 

SITE PLAN / LANDSCAPE PLAN –  
• 4.02.04A “The underlying goal of site planning guidelines is for all buildings, 

structures and site improvements to be integrated with the natural features of a site. 
Building form, orientation and massing should respond to natural landforms, 
drainage patterns, topography, vegetation, views and sun exposure. Buildings should 
step with the site, accomplishing level changes through a composition of forms rather 
than extensive site grading. Building forms and roof lines should relate to the site 
contours and surrounding land forms. Exposed building profiles atop ridge lines and 
harsh angular forms which are in contrast to natural slopes should be avoided.”  

o The massing of the house is inconsistent with the intent and language of the 
Design Guidelines.   

• There are significant issues which need to be solved at a basic level.  The approach to 
the development of the house seems to be maximizing the available area within the 
Building Envelope with a disregard for site conditions and little regard for the Design 
Guidelines.  

• The submittal proposes the complete elimination of the existing vegetation and berm 
across most of the street frontage along Peregrine drive due to the second driveway 
cut.  

• 4.02.07A “Garages shall have no more than three bays.”    
o There are two driveways and four garage bays proposed in this design. 

Direction was provided at the last review to minimize the impact / visibility of 
the second drive using Grass-Crete or similar treatment. This submittal shows 
the second drive to be the same material as the primary drive.  

o The Metro District stores snow on the outside edge of the curved road where 
the proposed second drive is located and will be problematic for the District.  

o The proposed second drive is in a blind spot with no turnaround space and 
vehicles will be backing into the District road.  

124



o Direction was provided at the last review to minimize the impact / visibility of 
the second garage by concealing it within the material expression. This garage 
bay is shown to be the same as the primary garage doors.  

• The dog run requires significant disturbance to the site. This disturbance occurs 
adjacent to the southern property boundary and there is no significant planting 
proposed to mitigate this disturbance. The grass and retaining area should be reduced 
and the drainage swale should be allowed to continue flowing around this area. The 
notation of taking all the drainage from south side of the home and adjacent hillside 
into an area drain has the potential of becoming extremely problematic.  

• The drainage pattern from the southwest corner of the garage to the north needs to be 
reconfigured to flow properly. 

• Minimize the limits of construction disturbance along south side of home.  
• The landscape plan is minimalist for such a large structure; significantly more 

plantings will be required. 
o Additional and significant tree plantings should be provided along the 

southern property line.  

ARCHITECTRUAL 
• 4.03.05A “Residential buildings shall be based upon a central rectilinear massing with 

simple forms added to create scale, and to allow from the adaptation to natural 
landforms. The underlying rectilinear from should have the visual impression of growing 
out of the site.” The overall expression of forms does not feel like a unified design 
composition. And, there is still no sense of a primary form which has been added on to 
over time.  

o The overall expression of forms does not feel like a unified design composition. 
There is still no sense of a primary from which has been added on to over time. 
The distinct variation in character between the adjacent elevations (north / east) at 
the bedroom area is problematic.  

• 4.03.03 “building height and massing shall be designed in relationship to the 
characteristics of each site and in all cases buildings shall be designed with a low-
profile understated appearance.” 

o The east elevation appears massive.  
• In the previous review, there was much discussion regarding the need for the home 

design to respond more closely with the design guidelines and the overall massing of 
this design is still of great concern. The east facing façade is massive, and along with 
the fenestration, it appears more of a commercial building than a ranch-character 
residence.  

• 4.03.03 Roof height calculations, appear to be in conformance, except for the guard rail 
for the upper deck.  

• 4.03.03B “Low-Level one to two story building mass is encouraged.”  
• 4.03.03E “Building forms should step with the existing natural contours of the site and be 

designed to nestle into existing terrain.”  
• 4.03.04 Roofs B. The majority of roof forms are expressed as 3:12 pitch, with a small 

percentage expressed as 8:12 pitch which is the minimum standard for primary roof 
forms. There is still no sense of the primary building mass to which secondary formal 

125



elements have been added. Significant improvements have been made, but the design still 
lacks an underlying primary building form.  

• 4.03.05. “Acceptable exterior wall materials include stone and wood. Stone shall be used 
as an expression of mass; heavy timber or log framing may be used to express structural 
form; wood siding may be used for exterior sheathing’ and board trim may be used for 
detail areas such as fascia, eave, corner and window trim. IN all cases, the use of 
exterior wall materials shall accurately convey the structural integrity of the residence.” 

o The design guidelines suggest the use of natural materials and the strip stone 
veneer product does not provide the impression of a supportive mass.  

• Roof expression on the north elevation (master bath / closet) appear unresolved and 
unrelated to the massing.  

• The tower feels over-scaled and appears unrelated in scale to everything but the (still) 
overly massive scale of the eastern wall.  

• The fenestration on the tower is out of proportion with the expression of structure. With 
the amount of glazing proposed, the amount of light output would be disturbing to 
neighbors. 

• The window pattern at the craft room could be better expressed to reinforce the change in 
massing associated with the roof forms.  

• Given the formality of the west entry elevation, the entry door should be centered on the 
gable roof form. The framework for this element is not clearly understood by the 
information provide on the drawings. As shown, it does not appear to be detailed 
consistently with other elements shown.  
 

General Comments: 
The previous review, there was much discussion regarding the need for the home design to 
respond more closely with the design guidelines and the overall massing of this design is still of 
great concerns. The east facing façade is massive, unbroken and along with the fenestration, it 
appears more as a commercial building than a ranch-character residence. The Board feels this is 
not a workable plan for the site or the Ranch Design Guidelines.  
Sketch – Denied  
 
Project Review History:  
Sept. 13 - Pre-Design - no vote 
Oct. 11 - Sketch – Denied  
Dec. 13 – Sketch – Tabled  
 
Design Review Board 
     
Gene Shanahan – Chairperson   Dennis Moran – Alternate Board Member  
David Staat – Board Member    Eric Jung -Alternate Board Member  
Lee Hegner - Board Member    Millie Aldrich – DRB Administrator 
Judy LaSpada - Board Member   Paul Miller - Architect Director  
Henry Reed - Board Member    Scott Sones - Landscape Arch. Dir. 
     

126



March 14, 2017, DRB Agenda 
Administrative Offices, 408 Carterville Road 

All times are approximate and subject to change     
8:30 a.m.  Call to order 

Approval of January Minutes  
Review Agenda - Project overview  

 
9:15 a.m.   Cunningham Residence – 166 Peregrine – Sketch Review #4 
  Applicant: Brent Alm – Architect, Grant & Susie Cunningham / owners   
 
  Staff Approvals – 1 
  241 Saddle Ridge Road - deck rail 
 

Single Family Construction Starts - 0 
 

Single Family Final Inspection – 0 
  

  Staff Updates 
 
Active Construction Sites / Build-out Analysis 
 
Compliance Officer Updates   

   
Other Business 
 

 
10:45 a.m. Adjourn  
 
 
 

Design Review Board - Minutes 
Tuesday, 14, March 2017 

408 Carterville Road, Cordillera, Colorado 
ATTENDANCE 
Members Present Gene Shanahan Chair                 
   David Staat, Board Member 
   Lee Hegner, Board Member 

Eric Jung – Board Member 
 
Members Absent Judy LaSpada – Board Member 

Henry Reed – Board Member 
Dennis Moran – Alternate Board Member 

 
Others present:  Millie Aldrich - DRB Administrator 

127



   Paul Miller – DRB Architectural Consultant  
   Ed Shriner – CPOA President (9:15-11:45)     
    
CALL TO ORDER                           
8:36 a.m. 
        
DECLARATION OF QUORUM/DIRECTOR QUALIFICATION 
Declaration was noted for the record a quorum was present for the purpose of doing business of 
the Cordillera Design Review Board.  
 
DISCLOSURE MATTERS – Eric Jung has a conflict of interest and removed himself during the 
discussion of 1562 Red Draw – Combine lots 20 & 21.  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA –DRB unanimously approved the agenda. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES – Minutes from Feb. 14, 2017 approved, moved by Hegner second 
by Jung all in favor. 
 
PUBLIC INPUT –  
 Jennifer Hays resident at 218 Peregrine, Chuck Perrin resident at 165 Peregrine, David and 
Tracey Bentley resident at 123 Peregrine all have several concerns with the proposed design for 
166 Peregrine such as: site disturbance, size of the house compared to size of lot, two driveway 
cuts off Peregrine, four garage bays, four story appearance on east elevation, tower element, roof 
top deck, commercial appearance on east elevation, large amount of glass and amount of light 
pollution.  
 
DRB ACTION ITEM –  

4. Cunningham Residence – 166 Peregrine    
11:16 a.m.   
Review: Sketch 
Present: Brent Alm – Architect, Grant Cunningham – Owner, Jim Stovall – Attorney  
Sketch – Denied. See memo located on Page 3 

 
STAFF APROVALS – 1 
241 Saddle Ridge – Bearcat, deck railing 
 
FINAL INSPECTION - 0 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATES 

• Active Construction Sites  
• Buildout analysis  

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

ADJOURNMENT          
11:45 a.m. 

128



There being no further information before the Cordillera Design Review Board, the meeting was 
adjourned. 
 
 
Design Review Board – Staff Memorandum                Date: 3/14/2017 
Applicant:  Cunningham Residence 
Location:  166 Peregrine / Lot 6- Filing 17 
Representative: Brent Alm, Architect / Grant Cunningham, Owner / Jim Stovall,        

Attorney  
DRB Coordinator: Millie Aldrich 

Review:  Sketch  
Project Overview 

The Cunningham Residence is a new residence located at 166 Peregrine / lot 6 filing 17. The site 
is 1.57 acres. The proposed residence is 7,615 square feet, Storage / Mechanical 1,375 square feet, 
Garage 900 square feet per drawing set 3/6/17. The Cunningham Residence is being reviewed for 
Sketch and is subjected to the Ranch Design Guidelines.  
 
Board Comments: 

GENERAL –  
The design that has been submitted for Sketch Review does not respond adequately to the 

Board’s concerns and comments provided at the previous reviews with respect to the character of 
the design and it’s conformance to the spirit of the Ranch Design Guidelines.  

4.01.00. The Ranch Design Guidelines “The design style for the Ranch is based upon the 
heritage of its location in the mountains of the American West. The romantic yet elegantly rustic 
lodges like the Old Faithful Lodge at Yellowstone, Timberline at Mt. Hood and the alpine 
shelters and lodges of Glacier Nation Park establish the context of this design theme. This 
western heritage is further defined by the simple, direct, yet picturesque ranch buildings still 
seen on the lower mountain slopes and valleys of Western Colorado. 

While the design style has its origin in the early, rustic mountain structures of the American 
West, the overall design goal for the Ranch is to create innovative structures and architectural 
solutions which respond to current lifestyles and incorporate up-to-date building technology. 
The intent is not to mimic the false fronts of cowboy towns, recreate rustic lodges or reproduce 
simple log cabins. Rather, design solutions should advance an architecture which responds to its 
location and respects its regional heritage. 

The architectural style expresses a direct use of natural materials which are an outgrowth of 
their setting and which have an appropriate scale to the surrounding mountains. Massive stone 
abutments, large timber trusses and heavy log framing are examples of materials typically 
associated with this theme.” 
 

SITE PLAN / LANDSCAPE PLAN –  
• 4.02.01 Site Planning Guidelines - A “Generally, buildings should be sited to 

maximize the attributes of a site while minimizing the disturbance of the site’s 
natural features.” 

o This submittal proposes the complete elimination of the existing vegetation 
and berm across most of the street frontage along Peregrine drive due to the 
second driveway cut.  

129



• 4.02.04 Building Siting - A “The underlying goal of site planning guidelines is for 
all buildings, structures and site improvements to be integrated with the natural 
features of a site. Building form, orientation and massing should respond to natural 
landforms, drainage patterns, topography, vegetation, views and sun exposure. 
Buildings should step with the site, accomplishing level changes through a 
composition of forms rather than extensive site grading. Building forms and roof 
lines should relate to the site contours and surrounding land forms. Exposed building 
profiles atop ridge lines and harsh angular forms which are in contrast to natural 
slopes should be avoided.”  

o The massing of the house is inconsistent with the intent and language of the 
Design Guidelines.  No change from previous review 2.14.17. 

o There are significant issues which need to be solved at a basic level.  The 
approach to the development of the house seems to be maximizing the 
available area within the Building Envelope with a disregard for site 
conditions and little regard for the Design Guidelines. No change from 
previous review 2.14.17. 

o The dog run requires significant disturbance to the site. This disturbance 
occurs adjacent to the southern property boundary and there is no significant 
planting proposed to mitigate this disturbance. The grass and retaining area 
should be reduced and the drainage swale should be allowed to continue 
flowing around this area. The notation of taking all the drainage from south 
side of the home and adjacent hillside into an area drain has the potential of 
becoming extremely problematic. No change from previous review 2.14.17. 

o The drainage pattern from the southwest corner of the garage to the north 
needs to be reconfigured to flow properly. 

o Minimize limits of disturbance along the south side of home. 
• 4.02.07 Parking and Garages - A “Garages shall have no more than three bays…. 

With a maximum aggregate footprint of 950 SF.”    
o There are two driveways and four garage bays proposed in this design.  

• 4.02.14 Improvements in the Right-of-Way  ‘All request for driveway cuts, driveways, 
retaining walls, landscaping, berms, address markers, fences, light bollards, and any 
other work or construction of any kind in the Right-of-Way must be submitted to the 
District for a permit. Final disposition of all requests shall be made by the District Board 
only.’ 

o  The Metro District stores snow on the outside edge of the curved road where 
the proposed second drive is located and will be problematic for the District.  

o The proposed second drive is in a blind spot with no turnaround space and 
vehicles will be backing into the District road.  

o The property line in not edge of road but approximately 15-18 feet from edge 
of road. The proposed second driveway is on Metro property and Metro 50 ft. 
Right-of-Way 

• 4.04.04 Manicured Landscape Area - A “Planting should frame views, provide 
privacy, anchor the corners of the structure, buffer prevailing winds and offer 
seasonal interest.” 

o The landscape plan is minimalist for such a large structure; significantly more 
plantings will be required. No change from previous review 2.14.17. 

130



o Additional and significant tree plantings should be provided along the 
southern property line.  

 
ARCHITECTRUAL 
• 4.03.02 Building Size “If the ground floor space is higher than 7 feet and/or has 

egress, it will be considered habitable square footage.” 
o The lowest level is 10 ft. above grade which gives the appearance of another 

level. 
o Foundation drawings have not been submitted, however several past project 

when realized the height and additional square footage the owner converts 
previous crawl space into finished basement. Owner prefer not to fill in the 
crawl space when the footing are at a lower elevation and turn the crawlspace 
into useable space.  

o Stepping the building with the topography would minimize the 10 ft. wall. 
• 4.03.03 Building Height “building height and massing shall be designed in 

relationship to the characteristics of each site and in all cases buildings shall be 
designed with a low-profile understated appearance.” 

o The east elevation appears massive.  
• 4.03.03 Building Height A “Building scale should be reinforced by varied building 

heights, off-sets in building elevations, well-proportioned fenestration, decks and 
balconies, and architectural detailing.” 

o The tower feels over-scaled and appears unrelated in scale to everything but the 
(still) overly massive scale of the eastern wall.  

• 4.03.03 Building Height B “Low-Level one to two story building mass is 
encouraged.”  

o In the previous review, there was much discussion regarding the need for the 
home design to respond more closely with the design guidelines and the 
overall massing of this design is still of great concern. The east facing façade 
is massive, and along with the fenestration, it appears more of a commercial 
building than a ranch-character residence.  

• 4.03.03 Building Height E “Building forms should step with the existing natural 
contours of the site and be designed to nestle into existing terrain.”  

o The longest dimension of the house approximately 117 ft. does not step and 
runs perpendicular to the existing contours. 

• 4.03.03 Building Height Roof height calculations  
o The roof height elevation #10 is taken from the floor elevation of the roof deck. 

An accessible roof top deck requires a minimum 36” guardrail. When the 
guardrail is included in the roof height calculation, then the maximum allowable 
height of 35 feet is exceeded.  

• 4.03.04 Roofs “A simple pattern of primary and secondary roof forms, dormers, and a 
limited palette of materials and colors are the primary design objective for roofs”  

• 4.03.04 Form A “For shed roofs, no more than 40 percent of the total roof may be 
designed as a single-plane.” 

o The garage is an all shed roof. 

131



• 4.03.04 Pitch – B “Primary roof structures should have a minimum pitch of 8:12 and a 
maximum pitch of 12:12... With the exception of small flat roof sections, the pitch of 
secondary roofs shall be at least 3:12.” 

o   The majority of roof forms are expressed as 3:12 pitch approximately 62 
percent, with 30 percent expressed as 8:12 pitch, 2 percent as 6:12 pitch and 6 
percent flat roof. There is still no sense of the primary building mass to which 
secondary formal elements have been added. Significant improvements have been 
made, but the design still lacks an underlying primary building form.  

• 4.03.05 Exterior Wall Materials “Acceptable exterior wall materials include stone and 
wood. Stone shall be used as an expression of mass; heavy timber or log framing may be 
used to express structural form; wood siding may be used for exterior sheathing’ and board 
trim may be used for detail areas such as fascia, eave, corner and window trim. In all cases, 
the use of exterior wall materials shall accurately convey the structural integrity of the 
residence.”  

o The design guidelines suggest the use of natural materials and the strip stone 
veneer product does not provide the impression of a supportive mass.  
♦ Architect clarified in the meeting the stone would be 6”-8” tall, 36” long and 

4”-6” width, not the strip stone veneer as suggested in the exterior materials 
rendering.  

o The framework of the west entry elevation is not clearly understood by the 
information provided on the drawing. As shown, it does not appear to be detailed 
consistently with other elements shown. All other gable roof forms provide 
expressed timber purlins and knee braces – this element should be consistent with 
those.  

• 4.03.06 Windows and Doors - A “Window arrangements should be designed in 
proportion to the structure and form of the building and should adhere to a traditional 
rectangular pattern in keeping with the overall design theme.”  

o The newly added gable dormers located at the Master bedroom and bath, along 
with the reduced proportion of glazing relative to wall area is a step in the right 
direction. Though now, the rest of the elevation is architecturally in conflict with 
the expression. If the rest of the elevation were revised to be consistent with this 
latest revision, there would be less conflict with the intent of the Design 
Guidelines.  

o The fenestration on the tower is out of proportion with the expression of structure. 
With the amount of glazing proposed, the amount of light output would be 
disturbing to neighbors.  

General Comments: 
The previous review, there was much discussion regarding the need for the home design to 
respond more closely with the design guidelines and the overall massing of this design is still of 
great concerns. The overall expression of forms does not feel like a unified design composition. 
There is still no sense of a primary from which has been added on to over time. There have been 
several changes made to the skin of the building but the floor plan and site planning have yet to 
be resolved from the September 13thpre-design meeting. The Board feels this is not a workable 
plan for the site or the Ranch Design Guidelines.  
 

132



Architect wanted his 2.22.17 response memo sent to the DRB members. 
o 3.14.17 DRB coordinator forwarded email from Brent Alm, architect which 

included: response memo 2.22.17 and pdf sketch 1.3.17 
 

Sketch – Denied  
 
Project Review History:  
Sept. 13 - Pre-Design - no vote 
Oct. 11 – Sketch 1 – Denied  
Dec. 13 – Sketch 2 – Tabled 
Feb. 14 – Sketch 3 - Denied  

Feb. 22 – Sketch Submittal no changes were made from Feb. 14 Sketch 3, submittal 
rejected by DRB Coordinator.  

o Architect response memo 2.22.17 was not re-submitted with March 6 & 8 
Submittal, not circulated to Board prior to meeting.  

March 6 - Sketch Submittal for March 14 DRB meeting (Architect response letter 3.6.17, 
drawings)  

March 8 - Sketch Submittal for March 14 DRB meeting (3D rendering) 
March 14 – Sketch 4 – Denied 
 
 
Design Review Board 
Gene Shanahan – Chairperson   Dennis Moran – Alternate Board Member  
David Staat – Board Member    Eric Jung -Alternate Board Member  
Lee Hegner - Board Member    Millie Aldrich – DRB Administrator 
Judy LaSpada - Board Member   Paul Miller - Architect Director  
Henry Reed - Board Member    Scott Sones - Landscape Arch. Dir. 
     

April 11, 2017, DRB Agenda 
Administrative Offices, 408 Carterville Road 

All times are approximate and subject to change     
8:30 a.m.  Call to order 

Approval of March Minutes  
Review Agenda - Project overview  

 
9:15 a.m.   M.L.W.S. Residence – 205 Elk Springs Trail – Final Review 
  Applicant: Michael Lauterbach, owner 

   
  Staff Updates 

 
  Cunningham Residence – 166 Peregrine – CPOA appeal 

• Reasons for Denial  
   

Active Construction Sites / Build-out Analysis 
Construction Schedule 
 

133



Staff Approvals – 4 
  O’Connor Residence – 594 Winchester Trail - Technical Review 

Bearcat HOA – 7 new color schemes – Final Review 
Marshall Residence – 1223 Red Draw – new roof – Final Review 
Dunlap Residence – 658 Saddle Ridge – landscape fence – Final Review  

 
Single Family Construction Starts - 0 

 
Single Family Final Inspection – 0 

 
Compliance Officer Updates   

   
Other Business 
 

10:30 a.m. Adjourn  
 
 

Design Review Board - Minutes 
Tuesday, 11, April 2017 

408 Carterville Road, Cordillera, Colorado 
ATTENDANCE 
Members Present Gene Shanahan Chair                 
   David Staat, Board Member 
   Lee Hegner, Board Member 
     Henry Reed – Board Member 10:30 – 11:35 
Members Absent Judy LaSpada – Board Member 

Dennis Moran – Alternate Board Member 
Eric Jung – Alternate Board Member 

Others present:  Millie Aldrich - DRB Administrator 
   Paul Miller – DRB Architectural Consultant 
   Rachel Oys  -Cordillera General Manager 8:45 – 9:05   
  
CALL TO ORDER   
8:34 a.m. 
DECLARATION OF QUORUM/DIRECTOR QUALIFICATION 
Declaration was noted for the record a quorum was present for the purpose of doing business of 
the Cordillera Design Review Board.  
 
DISCLOSURE MATTERS – No conflicts of interest were noted. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA –DRB unanimously approved the agenda. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES – Minutes from March 14, 2017, approved, moved by Hegner 
second by Staat all in favor. 
 

134



PUBLIC INPUT – No public input was noted. 
 
DRB ACTION ITEM –  

5. M.L.W.S. Residence – 205 Elk Springs                                      
  9:20 a.m.   
Review: Final 
Present: Mike Lauterbach 
Final – Approved with comments. (See memo located in Page 2) 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATES 

• Review reasons for denial from previous minutes of the Cunningham Residence 
• Active Construction Sites 

 
STAFF APROVALS – 4 

O’Connor Residence – 594 Winchester Trail - Technical Review 
Bearcat HOA – 7 new color schemes – Final Review 
Marshall Residence – 1223 Red Draw – new roof – Final Review 
Dunlap Residence – 658 Saddle Ridge – landscape fence – Final Review 

FINAL INSPECTION - 0 
OTHER BUSINESS 
ADJOURNMENT          
 11:35 a.m.  
There being no further information before the Cordillera Design Review Board, the meeting was 
adjourned. 
 
Design Review Board - Staff Memorandum            Date: 4/11/2017 
Applicant:  Elk Spring Trail Residence 
Location:  205 Elk Spring Trial / Lot 15, Filing 7 
Representative: Michael Lauterbach   

DRB Coordinator: Millie Aldrich 
Review:  Final                             

Project Overview 
The Elk Spring Trail Residence is a new residence located 205 Elk Spring Trail / Lot 15, Filing 7. 
The site is 2.432 acres. The proposed residence is 4,116 square feet, per drawing set 4/20/17. The 
Elk Spring Trial Residence is being reviewed for Sketch and is subject to the Ranch Design 
Guidelines. 
 
Board Comments: 
Site Plan: 

• The grading at the driveway is still problematic - at the location between the garage and 
the entry walk, the slope is shown to be 16.6 percent. The leader on the drawing says it is 
3 percent slope, which is clearly inaccurate and misleading. Lowering the garage doors as 
previously suggested would solve this problem. 

o Lower garage floor minimum 6” 

135



• Widen entry walk where it meets the arrival patio 
• Railings will be required at the entry walk steps – provide detail. 
• Proposed grading at the area east of the parking spot exceeds 2:1 slope. 
• The boulder retaining below the back-up area is shown to be 4’-6”, which will require 

engineering, or 
revision to be less than 4’ high. 

• Provide spot elevations at the area drain inlet/outlets. 
o There is an inlet in the window well of the lower level Living Room and an outlet 

on the East side of the drive. Provide a rim elevation for the inlet and an invert 
elevation for the outlet. What size is the culvert for that window well?  The invert 
for that culvert is located above the 28 proposed contour. The drive elevation in 
line with tat culvert is aprox. 28.2’, it is unlikely that the culvert can be located 
below that elevation due to the culvert size, drive thickness, subtrade and cover. 
Clarify.  

o Drainage culvert between the entry walk landing and Guest Parking area. No rim 
or invert elevation have been provided.  

• The address marker detail provided does not appear to be in character with the design of 
the home. 

• A window well is not provided in the grading plan for the window to the garage, near the 
entry. 

o Omit window 
• Show location for address marker, provide detail and lighting cut sheets 

o Address marker should be the character of the house, use a combination of steel 
and wood 

• Fire wise guidelines use a 30ft offset from the roof or decks, not foundation. Revise Site 
and Landscape plans.  

Construction Management Plan: 
• Provide detail for the Erosion Control Fence. 
• Provide methods for mitigating mud from tracking onto Elk Spring Trail. 
• Show an Erosion Log at inlet to drive culvert 
• Show erosion control wattles or silt fence along contours above the drive to mitigate 

mud runoff 
Landscape Plan: 

• Adjust defensible space to 30ft., see comment above.  
• Provide Fire Wise methods for preventing ladder fuels from generating on existing 

conifer trees. 10 ft should be clear of vegetation. 
• Clarify width of the gravel border around the house. 
• Northwest corner of the house (master bath) is very close to the property line to the 

lot to the West. More tall screening should be provided.  
Architectural: 

• Metal roofing should be used as an accent to the main roofing material. Section 
4.03.04E 

o Corrugated cor-ten roof, natural weathered. 
o All metal roof received variance / deviation from Design Guidelines  

136



• Metal siding is listed as a prohibited material for use as exterior siding. Section 
4.03.05H 

o Corrugated cor-ten siding, match roof, natural weathered.  
o Metal siding received a variance / deviation from Design Guidelines  

• Height Calculation are incorrect, revise grade elevations.  
• Locate fireplace exhaust flu on back side of chimney. 
• Any roof vents not able to be in chimney must be located on back side of roof, 

painted to match roof color, maximum 3 vents 
• Partial elevation on Section AA, Sheet 7, is drawn incorrectly. 
• Detail 1, Roof Eave – the exposed rafter tail size is not provided. 
• Details 5, 6, 7 – window trim at steel siding – shall have 1 ½” steel trim surround. 
• Detail 8, Deck Railing – horizontal elements appear too “tacked on” and not well 

integrated into the “railing system.” 
o Horizontal railing must be integrated between vertical supports 

• Detail 11, Window sill in stone – shown as steel, would look better as stone 
• Detail 12, Stone at grade – Stone veneer shall terminate below proposed grade. 
• Detail 15, Metal Base – provide base flashing  
• Meter enclosure will have 3x siding to match the house.  

 
General Comments: 
 
Final –Approved with comments 
 

137


	June 23 Agenda
	CMD April 28 Minutes
	CMD May 16 Minutes
	CMD May 24 Minutes
	CPOA April 28 Minutes
	CPOA May 16 Minutes
	CPOA May 24 Minutes
	Lot Donation
	CMD Financials
	Contract Ratification
	CPOA Financials
	Kensignton Green HOA Letter
	Admnistration Update
	Recreation Update
	Operations Update
	Public Safety/DRB Update



